Village of Colfax

Date: September 8, 2022
To:  Village Board
From: Lynn Niggemann, Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer

Re: Water and Sewer Ordinances

The Public Works Committee met on August 18", 2022. Per DNR regulations, the Village Board needs to
review the ordinance and rates for water and sewer. The Public Works Committee has review Title 9 Public
Utilities, Chapters 1, 2 and 4 the Water, Sewer and Miscellaneous Utilities.

1) The changes to the ordinance are listed below:
e Page 3 is what looks to be a typo, change the Sec. 9-1-12 to 9-1-2.
o Page 29 Sec. 9-2-11- the highlighted sentence addresses the Village Street Opening process.

o Prior to 2018, the Village had a permit fee of $1,000 when homeowners needed to repair their
utilities and open the street to connect to the main.

o Effective August 1%, 2018, the Village modified that street opening so that the homeowner was
responsible for the entire cost to repair the road back to DOT specifications. That process was
complex due to the amount of interaction between the utility companies estimating the work and
the work actually getting completed.

o NOW, the Public Works committee would like to go back to a permit fee to make the process
less complicated. However, $1,000 would not cover much of a patch on a street. The Public
Works recommendation is to charge a permit fee of $2,500. -

* This would change would include modification of the sewer ordinance — 2022-03
Ordinance Amendment — see the strikeout and the bold with the new text.
= The updated construction/access permit application then would be modified to reflect the
$2,500 permit fee.
e Page3l
o Sec. 9-2-20 (b) Modify the dollar amount to reflect the Board approved amounts.
o Sec; 9-2-21 (b) Modify the dollar amount to reflect the Board approved amounts.
e Page32
o Sec. 9-2-22 (a) Modify the dollar amount to reflect the Board approved amounts.

This information is found after page 36.
2) The Public Works Committee recommended a 1% increase for the sewer by volume rates. Currently the
rate is $5.10 per 1,000 gallons. A 1% increase would change the $5.10 to $5.15 per 1,000 gallons.
There are three calculations showing the net effect on accounts. With 1% increase the net effect based
on the last twelve months of usage, an increase of $1,176.52, 2% would be $2,353.04 and 3% would be
$3,529.56. The examples show what the change in a bill would be and the highlighted column is the
annual increase for an average bill.



\._

_— |

Public Works Committee Meeting
August 18", 2022
6:00 p.m.

The Village of Colfax Public Works Committee met on August 18" 2022 at 6:00 p.m. at the Village Hall, 613
Main Street, Colfax, W1. Members Present were: Jody Albricht and Jen Rud, Chair. Excused: Davis. Others
present included: Director of Public Works and Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer Niggemann.

Review the Public Utilities Title 9 Ordinance/Review Sewer & Water Rates — The Committee reviewed the
Water & Sewer Regulations and Rates ordinances. In reviewing the ordinance and the 2021 year-end results,
the Committee felt that the Sewer Utility should increase the rates one percent to help soften any future
needs for rate increases. The average residence would potentially see about a $2/quarter increase in the
water bill with the rate going from $5.10 per 1,000 gallons to $5.15 per 1,000 gallons effective January 1, 2023
with the rate change on the April 2023 bill. The other discussion involved street openings when repairing
sewer laterals. Prior to 2018, the street opening fee was $1,000. A couple projects left the Village with a
balance to pay of $3,000 to $4,000. The Village modified the ordinance to have the property owners
responsible for the repair of the street when they have utility projects. This process has been very difficult to
keep track of due to timing that the patches need to settle before being asphalted. Between the Public Works
and Administration, it would be better to go back to a standard permit fee. Suggestion would be $2,500.

A motion was made by Albricht and seconded by Rud to recommend to the Village Board to increase the X
sewer by volume rate to $5.15 per 1,000 gallons. A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor. '
Motion carried. I;
-
A motion was made by Albricht and seconded by Rud to recommend to the Village Board to change the street ',
opening fee to $2,500. A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor. Motion carried. '
—— -4

Adjournment — A motion was made by Albricht and seconded by Rud to adjourn the meeting at 7:20 pm. All
members voted in favor. Meeting adjourned.

Jen Rud, Chairperson



TITLE 9
Public Ultilities

Chapter 1 Water Utility Regulations and Rates
Chapter 2 Sewer Ultility Regulations and Rates
Chapter 3 Cable Television

Chapter 4 Miscellaneous Utilities Regulations

CHAPTER 1
Water Utility Regulations and Rates

Article A Rates

Public Fire Protection Service -- F-1

General Service -- Metered -- Mg-1

General Service -- Suburban -- Mg-2

General Water Service -- Unmetered -- Ug-1

Public Service -- Mpa-1

Reconnection Charges -- R-1

Building and Construction Water Service -- Mz-1
Seasonal, Emergency or Temporary Service -- Mgt-1
Bulk Water -- Bw-1

\O\D\O\O\O\O\O\O\P\O\O\O\O\D\O\O
it bk e et = = \D OO SN N R W N =

-1-10 Private Fire-Protection Service -- Unmetered -- Upf-1
-1-11 Hydrant Charges -- H-1

-1-12 Temporary Metered Supply, Meter and Deposits -- D-1
-1-13 Additional Meter Rental Charge -- Am-1

-1-14 Water Lateral Installation Charge -- Cz-1

-1-15 through

-1-19 Reserved for Future Use

Article B Rules and Regulations

)
S

Compliance With Rules

Establishment of Service

Service Contract

Temporary Metered Supply, Meter and Deposits
Water for Construction

Use of Hydrants

Operation of Valves and Hydrants; Unauthorized Use of Water; Penalty
Refunds of Monetary Deposits

Service Connections (or Water Laterals)

Service Piping for Meter Settings

Turning on Water

Failure to Read Meters

Complaint Meter Tests

\D\O\O\O\O\O\P\D\O\O\O\D\D

e e e e e e e e e

WWWNNNDNNNDNN N
—

N—=OOVOO~IAAWNAEWN

Supp. 6-98

| ok Ml



] [
AerbhbLLOLOLOLLG

b d e ek pd g bk ook bk b b ek ek pd ek pd ek b e ek el i

[}
hdndhibhdnnbh bbb A A

WVWOLOOVLVLWOWOOVOVOOLOOWOOO0OO0O0O0Lew
NPAWLWNNRLROVOONOOWNPAWNROOO~IONNEB W

Thawing Frozen Services

Curb Stop Boxes

Installation of Meters

Repairs to Meters

Replacement and Repair of Service Pipe
Charges for Water Wasted Due to Leaks
Inspection of Premises

Customer’s Deposits

Conditions of Deposit

Guarantee Contracts

Deferred Payment Agreement

Disconnection and Refusal of Service
Collection of Overdue Bills

Surreptitious Use of Water

Vacation of Premises

Repairs to Mains

Duty of Utility With Respect to Safety of the Public
Handling Water Mains and Service Pipes in Excavation Trenches
Protective Devices

Water Main Installations in Platted Subdivisions
Water Main Extension Rule

Cross Connection Control

Private Well Abandonment

Supp. 6-98



Sec. 9-1-1 Water Utility Regulations and Rates
ARTICLE A

Rates

SEC. 9-1-1 PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE - F-1.

(a) For public fire protection service to the Village of Colfax, the annual charge shall be
Sixty-three Thousand Two Hundred Sixty-two Dollars ($63,262.00) to cover the use of
mains and hydrants up to and including the terminal hydrant and connection on each main
existing for the 1998 test year.

(b) For all extensions of fire protection service, there shall be an additional annual charge
of Five Hundred Sixty-three Dollars ($ 563.00) per net hydrant added to the system in excess
of ninety (90) hydrants.

(c) This service shall include the use of hydrants for fire protection service only and such
quantities of water as may be demanded for the purposes of extinguishing fires within the
municipal boundary. This service shall also include water used for testing equipment and
training personnel. For all other purposes, the metered or other rates set forth, or as may be

filed with the Public Service Commission, shall apply.
(d) The annual public fire protection charge shall never be less than the base amount.

[ el |
SEC. 9-1-12 GENERAL SERVICE—METERED—MG-1.

J
S L i
(a) Quarterly Service Charge: “up A;::e: o
5/8-inch meter- § 2024 3859
3/4-inch meter- § 2024 | 4850
1-inch meter- $ 4048 | 4/40
1-1/4-inch meter- $ 56.05| 5670
| 1-1/2-inch meter- $ 71.62| ~1A770
2-inch meter- $108.99 |- 07- 40
3-inch meter- $205.52 | g05.£0
4-inch meter- $31140| 3/.40

6-inch meter- i $ 467.10
8-inch meter- | $622.80
(b) Plus Volume Charge:
First 30,000 gallons used each quarter $3.01 per 1,000 gallons. 4 .48
Next 70,000 gallons used each quarter $2.44 per 1,000 gallons. 3.6(6
Next 100,000 gallons used each quarter ~ $2.08 per 1,000 gallons. 3.7

Over 200,000 gallons used each quarter $1.35 per 1,000 gallons. .5&
(c) Billing.
Bills used for water service are rendered quarterly and become due and payable upon
issuance following the periods for which service is rendered. A late payment charge of three
percent (3%) but not less than fifty cents ($.50) will be added to bills not paid within twenty
(20) days of issuance. This one-time three percent (3%) late payment charge will be applied
only to any unpaid balance for the current billing period’s usage. This late payment charge is

applicable to all
Supp. 1-10



Sec. 9-1-2  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

customers. The utility customer may be given a written notice that the bill is

overdue no sooner than twenty (20) days after the bill is issued. Unless

payment or satisfactory arrangement for payment is made within the next eight

(g) days, service may be disconnected pursuant to Chapter PSC 185, Wis. Adm.

ode.
(d) Combined Metering.

(1) Volumetric meter readings will be combined for billing if the utility for its
own convenience places more than one (1) meter on a single water service
lateral. Multiple meters placed for the purpose of identifying water not
discharged into the sanitary sewer are not considered for utility conve-
nience and shall not be combined for billing. Meter readings from individ-
ually metered separate service laterals shall not be combined for billing

urposes.
Euildings used in the same business, located on the same parcel and served
by a single lateral may have the customer’s water supply piping installed to
a central point so that volume can be metered in one (1) place.

2

SEC.9-1-3  GENERAL SERVICE - SUBURBAN — MG-2.

Water customers residing outside the corporate limits of the Village of Colfax shall be
billed at the regular rates for service (Schedule Mg-1) plus a twenty-five percent
(25%) surcharge.

SEC.9-14  GENERAL WATER SERVICE - UNMETERED - UG-1.

(a) Rate. Where the utility cannot immediately install its water meter, service may
be supplied temporarily on an unmetered basis. Such service shall be billed at
the rate of Fifty-seven and 20/100 Dollars ($57.20) per billing period. This rate
shall be applied only to single-family residential and small commercial customers
and approximates the cost of thirteen thousand (13,000) gallons of water each
quarter under Schedule Mg-1. If it is determined by the utility that usage is in
excess of thirteen thousand (13,000) gallons of water per billing period, an addi-
tional charge per Schedule Mg-1 will be made for the estimated additional usage.

(b) Billing. Same as Schedule Mg-1.

SEC. 9-1-5 PUBLIC SERVICE - MPA-1.

(a) Water service supplied to municipal buildings, schools, sewer treatment plants,
etc., shall be metered and the regular metered service rates applied.

(b) Water used on an intermittent basis for flushing sewers, street sprinkling,
flooding skating rinks, drinking fountains, etc., shall be metered where meters
can be set to measure the service. Where it is impossible to measure the
service, the Ultility shall estimate the volume of water used based on the
pressure, size of opening and period of time water is allowed to be drawn. the
estimated quantity used shall be billed at the rate of Two Dollars ($2.00) per one
thousand (1,000) gallons.

Supp. 6-98



Sec.9-1-6  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

SEC.9-1-6 RECONNECTION CHARGES - R-1.

During Normal After Normal
Business Hours Business Hours
Reinstallation of meter, $20.00 $30.00
including valving at curb stop
Valve turned on at curb stop $ 15.00 $22.50

Note: No charge for disconnection.

SEC.9-1-7 BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION WATER SERVICE -~ MZ-1.

(a) For single-family and small commercial buildings, apply the unmetered rate,
Schedule Ug-1.

(b) For large commercial, industrial, or multiple apartment buildings, a temporary
mcthr%d installation shall be made and general, metered rates (Schedule Mg-1)
applied.

SEC.9-1-8 SEASONAL, EMERGENCY OR TEMPORARY SERVICE — MGT-1.

Seasonal customers* shall be served at the general service rate (Schedule Mg-1),
except that each customer served under this rate shall pay an annual seasonal service
charge equal to four (4) times the ap licable service charge. Water used in any
quarter shall be billed at the applicabl% volume schedule in Mg-1 and the charge
added to the annual seasonal service charge. Further, if service has been discon-
nected, a charge under Schedule R-1 is applied at the time of reconnection.

*Seasonal customers are general service customers whose use of water is
normally for recurring periods of less than a year.

SEC.9-1-9 BULK WATER —-BW-1.

(a) All bulk water supplied from the water system through hydrants or other
connections shall be metered, or at the direction of the utility, estimated.
Utility personnel or utility-approved party shall supervise the delivery of water.

(b) Bulk water sales are:

(1) Water supplied to tank truck or from hydrant for the purpose of extin-
guishing fires outside the utility’s immediate service area,

(2) Water supplied by tank truck or from hydrant for purposes other than
extinguishing fires such as irrigation or the filling of swimming pools; or,

(3) Water supplied from hydrants or other temporary connections for general
service type applications. (Water supplied for construction purposes -- S€€
Schedule Mz-1).

(c) A charge for the volume of water used will be billed to the party using the
water at Two-and-90/100-Dollars-(32.90). per one thousand (1,000) gallons. A
?gwice charge, in addition to the volumetric charge, will be Fwenty Dollars
$20.00). :

/<y E. W& Zime Dallers ($ S
S40.00). Fowur condg “H18/00 Dolilts L=+ 4.4.%)

Supp. 6-98

fur ™ ./ 2olo

Lp daded



Sec.9-1-9  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

(d) A deposit for the meter and/or valve will be required. The deposit collected

shall be Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) and will be refunded upon return of the
utility’s equipment. Damaged or lost equipment will be repaired or replaced at
the customer’s expense.

SEC.9-1-10 PRIVATE FIRE-PROTECTION SERVICE -- UNMETERED

-- UPF-1.

(a) Use. This service shall consist of unmetered connections to the main for the

purpose of supplying water to private fire protection systems such as automatic
sprinkler systems, standpipes, (where same are connected permanently or
continuously to the mains) and private hydrants.

(b) Charges. Quarterly demand charges for private fire-protection service:

(c)

Size of Connection Charge
2-inch $24.00
3-inch $45.00
4-inch $ 75.00
6-inch $151.00
8-inch $241.00

10-inch $362.00
12-inch $528.00

Billing. Same provisions as for general service.

SEC. 9-1-11 HYDRANT CHARGES - H-1.

(2)

(b)

(c)

In cases where no other supply is available, hydrants may be used. The fol-
lowing charges shall apply:

(1) Service charge for setting or moving sprinkler valve: $10.00.

(2) Hydrant wrench deposit: $10.00.

(3) Reducer (if necessary) deposit: $10.00.

In addition, the projected water usage shall be paid for in advance at the
sghedule rates. The minimum charge for water usage shall be Ten Dollars
($10.00).

Refunds of deposits will be made upon return of the utility equipment. Damaged
or lost equipment will be repaired or replaced at customer expense.

SEC.9-1-12 TEMPORARY METERED SUPPLY, METER AND DEPOSITS -- D-1.

Service charge for setting the valve and furnishing and setting the meter:
$10.00.

Deposit for valve and meter: $10.00.

Water usage shall be billed at present rates. . _

Refunds of deposits will be made upon return of the utility equipment. Damage
or lost equipment will be repaired or replaced at customer expense.

Supp. 6-98



Sec. 9-1-13  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

SEC. 9-1-13 ADDITIONAL METER RENTAL CHARGE — AM-1.

(2)

(b)

If a customer requests the installation of an additional meter to receive credit
for clear water not discharged into the sanitary sewer system, or if a sewerage
service customer who is not a customer of the Water Utility requests the
installation of a meter to determine the volume of sewage discharged into the
sanitary sewer system, the utility shall furnish and install this additional meter.
This rate shall be applied only to single-family residential and small commercial
customers. A re:ntafJl fee shall be charged for the use of this meter and the
following rates shall apply. Billing period same as in Schedule Mg-1:

5/8-inch meter $ 6.00 per billing period
3/4-inch meter $ 6.00 per billing period
1-inch meter $12.00 per billing period
1-1/4-inch meter $15.00 per billing period
1-1/2-inch meter $18.00 per billing period

Initial Meter Installation Charge -- Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00).

SEC.9-1-14 WATER LATERAL INSTALLATION CHARGE - CZ-1.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Subdivision developers shall be responsible, where the main extension has been
approved by the utility, for the water service lateral installation costs from the
main through the curb stop and box.

When the cost of a utility main extension is to be collected through assessment
by the municipality, the actual average water lateral installation costs from the
main through the curb stop and box shall be included in the assessment of the
appropriate properties. )

e 1nitial water service lateral(s), not installed as part of a subdivision
development or an assessable utility extension, will be installed from the main
through the curb stop and box by the utility, for which there will be made a
charge as follows:

3/4-inch or 1-inch copper water service $750.00
4-inch sewer service $750.00
Larger sized service Actual Cost

SEC. 9-1-15 THROUGH SEC. 9-1-19 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

Supp. 6-98



Sec. 9-1-20  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

ARTICLEB

Rules and Regulations

SEC.9-1-20 COMPLIANCE WITH RULES.

All persons now receiving a water supply from the Village of Colfax water utility, or
who may request service in the future, shall be considered as having agreed to be

bound by the rules and regulations as filed with the Public Service Commission of
Wisconsin.

SEC. 9-1-21 ESTABLISHMENT OF SERVICE.

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

Application for water service shall be made in writing on a form furnished by
the water utility. The application will contain the legal description of the
property to be served, name of the owner, the exact use to be made of the
service, and the size of the supply pipe and meter desired. (Note particularly
any special refrigeration, fire protection, and/or air-conditioning water-consuming
appliances.

Service will be furnished only if:

(1) Premises have a frontage on a properly platted street or public strip in
which a cast iron or other long-life water main has been laid, or where
property owner has agreed to and complied with the provisions of the
utility’s filed main extension rule.

(2) Property owner has installed or agrees to install a service pipe from the
curb line to the point of use, and laid not less than six (6) g:et below the
surface of an established or proposed grade, and according to Utility’s
specification, and

(3) Premises have adequate piping beyond metering point.
The owner of a multi-unit dwelling has the option of being served by individual
metered water service to each unit. The owner, by selecting this option, is
required to provide interior plumbing and meter settings to enable individual
metered service to each unit and individual disconnection without affecting
service to the other units. Each meter and meter connection will be a separate
water utility customer for the purpose of the filed rules and regulations.
No division of the water service of any lot or parcel of land shall be made for
the extension and independent meterage of the supply to an adjoining lot or
parcel of land. No division of a water supply service shall be made at the curb
for separate supplies therefrom for two FZ) or more separate premises having
frontage on any street or public service strip whether owned by the same or
different parties.

The Utility is hereby empowered to withhold approval of any application wherein

full information of the purpose of such supply is not clearly indicated and set

forth by the applicant property owner.

SEC. 9-1-22 SERVICE CONTRACT.

(2)

The minimum service contract period shall be one (1) year unless otherwise
specified by special contract or in the applicable rate schedule. Where the

Supp. 6-98



Sec. 9-1-22  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

Utility service has been disconnected at the customer’s request prior to expira-
tion of the minimum contract period, a reconnection charge shall be made,
payable in advance, when the customer requests reconnection of service. (See
Schedule R-1 for applicable rate.) The minimum contract period is renewed with
each reconnection. \

(b) A reconnection charge shall also be required from consumers whose services are
disconnected (shut off at curb stop) because of non-payment of bills when due
(not including disconnection for failure to comply with deposit or guarantee
rules). (See Schedule R-1 for applicable rate.)

(c) A consumer shall be considered as the same consumer provided the reconnection
is requested for the same location by any member of the same family, or if a
place of business, by any partner of the same business.

SEC.9-1-23 TEMPORARY METERED SUPPLY, METER AND DEPOSITS.

An applicant for temporary water supply on a metered basis shall make and maintain a
monetary deposit for each meter installed as security for payment for use of water
and for such other charges which may arise from the use of the supply. A charge
shall be made for setting the valve and furnishing and setting the meter. See
Schedule BW-1 for applicable rate.

SEC.9-1-24 WATER FOR CONSTRUCTION.

(a) When water is requested for construction purposes, or for filling tanks or other
such uses, an application therefor shall be made to the Utility, in writing, upon
application provided for that purpose in the Ultility’s office, giving a statement
of the amount of construction work to be done, or the size of the tank to be
filled, etc. Payment for the water for construction shall be made in advance at
the scheduled rates. The service pipe must be installed inside the building from
where the water must be drawn. No connection with the service pipe at the
curb shall be made without special permission from the Utility.

(b) In no case will any employee of the Utility turn on water for construction work
unless the contractor first presents a permit. Upon completion of the construc-
tion work, the contractor must return the original permit to the Utility.

(¢) Consumers shall not allow contractors, masons or other persons to take water
from their premises without first showing a permit from the Department. Any
c_onsudmer failing to comply with this provision will have water service discon-
tinued.

SEC.9-1-25 USE OF HYDRANTS.

(a) In cases where no other supply is available, permission may be granted by the
Utility to use a hydrant. No hydrant shall be used until it is equipped with a
sprinkling valve. In no case shall any valve be moved except by a member of
the Ultility.

(b) Before a valve is set, payment must be made for its setting and for the water to
be used at the scheduled rates. Where applicable, see Schedule BW-1 for
deposits and charges. Upon completing use of the hydrant, the customer must
notify the Utility to that effect.

Supp. 6-98



Sec. 9-1-25  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

(c) In the use of a hydrant supply, the hvdrant valve will be set at the proper
opening by the Utility when the sprinkling valve is set, and the flow of water
must be regulated by means of the sprinkling valve. If the water is to be used
through iron pipe connections, all such pipe installations shall have the swing
joint to facilitate quick disconnection from the fire hydrant.

SEC. 9-1-26 OPERATION OF VALVES AND HYDRANTS; UNAUTHORIZED
USE OF WATER; PENALTY.

Any person who shall, without authority of the Ultility, allow contractors, masons, or
other unauthorized persons to take water from their premises, operate any valve
connected with the street or supply mains, or open any fire hydrant connected with
the distribution system, except for the purpose of extinguishing fire, or who shall
wantonly damage or impair the same shall be subject to a fine as provided by
municipal ordinances. Permits for the use of hydrants apply only to such hydrants as
are designated for the specific use.

SEC. 9-1-27 REFUNDS OF MONETARY DEPOSITS.

All moneys deposited as security for payment of charges arising from the use of
temporary water supply on a metered basis, or for the return of a sprinkling valve
wheel or reducer, if the water is used on an unmetered basis, will be refunded to the
depositor on the termination of the use of water, the payment of all charges levied
against the depositor, and the return of the wheel and reducer.

SEC. 9-1-28 SERVICE CONNECTIONS (OR WATER LATERALS).

(a) No water service shall be laid through any trench having cinders, rubbish, rock
or gravel fill, or any other material which may cause injury to or disintegration
of the service pipe, unless adequate means of protection are provided by sand
filling or such other insulation as may be approved by the Utility. Service pipes
passing through curb or retaining walls shall be adequately safeguarded by
provision of a channel space or pipe casing, not less than twice the diameter of
the service connection. The space between the service pipe and channel or pipe
casing shall be filled and lightly caulked with an oakum, mastic cement, or other
resilient material, and made impervious to moisture.

(b) In backfilling the pipe trench, the service pipe must be protected against injury
by carefully hand tamping the ground filling, free from hard lumps, rocks,
stones, or other injurious material, around and at least six (6) inches over the
pipe.

(c) All water supplies shall be of undiminished size from the street main in to the
point of meter placement. Beyond the meter outlet valve the piping shall be
sized and proportioned to provide, on all floors, at all times, an equitable
distribution of water supply for the greatest probable number of fixtures or
appliances operating simultaneously.

Supp. 6-98



Sec. 9-1-29  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

SEC.9-1-29 SERVICE PIPING FOR METER SETTINGS.

(a) Where the original service piping is installed for a new metered customer, where

existing service piping is changed for the customer’s convenience, or where a
new meter is installed for an existing unmetered customer, the owner of the
premises at his/her expense shall provide a suitable location and the proper con-
nections for the meter. The water utility should be consulted as to the type and
size of meter setting. Where it is possible to set meters in the basement, or
other suitable place within the building, a short nipple shall be inserted after
the stop and waste cock, then a union, and then another nipple and coupling of
the proper length. The nipple attached to the union and coupling shall be cut
to a standard length provided by the plans of the Ultility (it may require a
horizontal run of eighteen (18) inches in such pipe line) which may later be
removed for the insertion of the meter into the supply line.

(b) No permit will be given to change from metered to flat rate service.

SEC.9-1-30 TURNING ON WATER.

The water cannot be turned on for a consumer except by a duly authorized employee
of the Utility. The plumber must leave the water turned off after completing the job.
This does not prevent the plumber from testing the work.

SEC.9-1-31 FAILURE TO READ METERS.

(a)

(b)

Where the utility is unable to read a meter after two (2) successive attempts,
the fact will be plainly indicated on the bill, and either an estimated bill will be
computed, or the minimum charge applied. The difference shall be adjusted when
the meter is again read, that is, the bill for the succeeding quarter will be
computed with the gallons or cubic feet in each block of the rate schedule
doubled and credit will be given on that bill for the amount of the minimum bill
paid the preceding month. Only in unusual cases, or when approval is obtained
from the customer shall more than three (3) consecutive estimated bills be
rendered where billed are rendered monthly and there shall be not more than
two (2) consecutive estimated bills where the billing period is two (2) months or
more.

If the meter is damaged (see Surreptitious Use of Water) or fails to operate, the
bill will be based on the average use during the past year unless there is some
reason why the use is not normal. If the average use cannot be properly
employed, the bill will be estimated by some equitable method.

SEC.9-1-32 COMPLAINT METER TESTS.

See Wis. Adm. Code, Chapter PSC 185.

SEC.9-1-33 THAWING FROZEN SERVICES.

See Wis. Adm. Code, Chapter PSC 185.

Supp. 6-98



Sec. 9-1-3¢  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

SEC.9-1-34 CURB STOP BOXES.

The consumer shall protect the curb stop box in the terrace and shall keep the same
free from dirt and other obstructions. The Ultility shall not be liable for failure to

locate the curb stop box and shut off the water in case of a leak on the consumer’s
premises.

SEC.9-1-35 INSTALLATION OF METERS.

Meters will be furnished and placed by the Utility and are not to be disconnected or
tampered with by the consumer. All meters shall be so located that they shall be
protected from obstructions and permit ready access thereto for reading, inspection,
and servicing, such location to be designated or approved by the Utility. All piping
within the building must be supplied by the owner. Where additional meters are
desired by the consumer, he shall pay for all piping and an additional amount
sufficient to cover the cost of maintenance and depreciation. Where applicable, see
Schedule Am-1 for rate.

SEC.9-1-36 REPAIRS TO METERS.

(a) Meters will be repaired by the Utility and the cost of such repairs caused by
ordinary wear and tear will be borne by the Utility.

(b) Repair of any damage to a meter resulting from the carelessness of the owner of
the premises, owner’s agent, or tenant, or from the negligence of any one of
them to properly secure and protect same, including any damage that may result
from allowing a water meter to become frozen or to be injured from the
presence of hot water or steam in the meter, shall be paid for by the consumer
or the owner of the premises.

SEC. 9-1-37 REPLACEMENT AND REPAIR OF SERVICE PIPE.

(a) Where the property owner requests that a larger service lateral be installed to
replace an existing smaller diameter pipe, an allowance of Fifteen Dollars
($15.00) will be made as a deduction in the cost, providing the new service is to
be installed in the same ditch as the existing service pipe.

(b) The service pipe from the main to and through the curb stop will be maintained
and kept in repair and when worn out, repiaced at the expense of the Ultility.
The property owner shall maintain the service pipe from the curb stop to the
point of use. .

(c) If the owner fails to repair a leaking or broken service pipe from curb to point
of metering or use within such time as may appear reasonable to the Ultility
after notification has been served on the owner by the Utility, the water will be
shut off and will not be turned on again until the repairs have been completed.

SEC.9-1-38 CHARGES FOR WATER WASTED DUE TO LEAKS.
See Wis. Adm. Code, Chapter PSC 185.

Supp. 6-98



Sec. 9-1-39  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

SEC.9-1-39 INSPECTION OF PREMISES.

During reasonable hours any officer or authorized employee of the Utility shall have
the right of access to the premises supplied with service, for the purpose of inspec-
tion or for the enforcement of the Ultility’s rules and regulations. Whenever ap-
propriate, the Utility will make a systematic inspection of all unmetered water taps
for the purpose of checking waste and unnecessary use of water.

SEC.9-140 CUSTOMER’S DEPOSIT.

See Wis. Adm. Code, Chapter PSC 185.

SEC. 9-141 CONDITIONS OF DEPOSIT.
See Wis. Adm. Code, Chapter PSC 185.

SEC.9-142 GUARANTEE CONTRACTS.
See Wis. Adm. Code, Chapter 185.

SEC.9-143 DEFERRED PAYMENT AGREEMENT.
See Wis. Adm. Code, Chapter 185.

SEC.9-144 DISCONNECTION AND REFUSAL OF SERVICE.

(a) Disconnection. See Wis. Adm. Code Chapter PSC 185.
(b) Disconnection Notice. The form of disconnection notice to be used is as follows:

DISCONNECTION NOTICE

Dear Customer:

The bill enclosed with this notice includes your current charge for utility
service and your previous unpaid balance.

You have 8 davs to pay the utility service arrears or your service is
subject to disconnection.
If you fail to pay the service arrears, or fail to contact us within the 8

days allowed to make reasonable time payment arrangements, we will
proceed with disconnection action.

To avoid the inconvenience of service interruption and an additional charge
of (amount) reconnection, we urge vou to pay the full arrears IMMEDI-
ATELY AT ONE OF OUR OFFICES.

Supp. 6-98



SEC.9-145 COLLECTION OF OVERDUE BILLS.

Sec. 9-1-44  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

If you have entered into a Deferred Payment Agreement with us and have
failed to make the time payment you agreed to, your service will be subject
to disconnection unless you pay the amount due within 8 days.

If you have a reason for delaying the payment, call us and explain the
situation.

PLEASE CALL THIS TELEPHONE NUMBER, (appropriate telephone
number), IMMEDIATELY IF:

You dispute the notice of delinquent account.

You have a question about your utility service arrears.

You are unable to pay the full amount of the bill and are willing to
enter into a deferred payment agreement with us.

There are any circumstances you think should be taken into considera-
tion before service is discontinued.

Any resident is seriously ill.

A o e

Illness Provision

If there is an existing medical emergency in your home and you furnish the
Utility with a statement signed by either a licensed Wisconsin physician, or
a public health official, we will delay disconnection of service up to 21
days. The statement must identify the medical emergency and specify the
period of time during which disconnection will aggravate the existing
emergency.

Deferred Payment Agreements

If you are a residential customer, and for some reason, you are unable to
pay the full amount of the utility service arrears on your bill, you may
contact the Ultility to discuss arrangements to pay the arrears over an
extended period of time.

This time payment agreement will require:

1. Payment of a reasonable amount at the time the agreement is made.

2. Payment of the remainder of the outstanding balance in monthly
installments over a reasonable length of time.

3. Payment of all future utility service bills in full by the due date.

In any situation where you are unable to resolve billing disputes or disputes
about the grounds for proposed disconnection through contacts with our
utility, you may make an appeal to the Wisconsin Public Service
Commission, Madison, Wisconsin.

(UTILITY NAME)

Ve

An amount owed by the customer may be levied as a tax as provided in Sec. 66.669;

Wis. Stats.

Supp. 6-98

A ,r{;(g/'
Yy

4



Sec. 9-1-46  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

SEC.9-146 SURREPTITIOUS USE OF WATER.

(a) When the Utility has reasonable evidence that a consumer is obtaining water, in
whole or in part, by means of devices or methods used to stop or interfere with
the proper metering of the utility service being delivered, the Ultility reserves
the right to estimate and present immediately a bill for service unmetered as a
result of such interference and such bill shall be payable subject to a twenty-
four (24) hours disconnection of service. When the Ultility shall have discon-
nected the consumer for any such reason, the Utility will reconnect the con-
sumer upon the following conditions:

(1) The consumer will be required to deposit with the Utility an amount
sufficient to guarantee the payment of the consumer’s bills for utility
service to the Utility.

(2) The consumer will be required to pay the Utility for any and all damages
to its equipment on the consumer’s premises due to such stoppage or inter-
ference with its metering,

(3) The consumer must further agree to comply with reasonable requirements to
protect the utility against further losses.

(b) Sections 98.26 and 943.20, Wis. Stats., as relating to water service, are hereby
adopted and made a part of these rules.

SEC.9-147 VACATION OF PREMISES.

When premises are to be vacated, the Utility shall be notified in writing at once, 50
that it may remove the meter and shut off the supply at the curb valve. The owner
of the premises shall be liable to prosecution for any damage to the property of the
water department by reason of failure to notify the Utility of vacancy.

SEC.9-148 REPAIRS TO MAINS.

The Utility reserves the right to shut off the water in the mains temporarily, to make
repairs, alterations or additions to the plant or system. When the circumstances will
permit, the Utility will give notification, by newspaper publication or otherwise, of
the discontinuance of the supply. No rebate will be allowed to consumers for such
temporary suspension of supply.

SEC.9-149 DUTY OF UTILITY WITH RESPECT TO
SAFETY OF THE PUBLIC.

It shall be the duty of the Utility to see that all open ditches for water mains,
hydrants, and service pipes are properly guarded to prevent accident to any person or
vehicle and at night there shall be displayed amber signal light in such manner as
will, so far as possible, insure the safety of the public.

SEC.9-1-50 HANDLING WATER MAINS AND SERVICE PIPES IN
EXCAVATION TRENCHES.

Contractors must ascertain for themselves the existence and location of all water
mains and service pipes. Where removed, cut or damaged during trench excavation,

Supp. 6-98



Sec. 9-1-50  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

contractors must, at their own expense, cause them to be replaced or repaired at
once. Contractors must not shut off the water service pipes to any consumer for a
period exceeding six (6) hours.

SEC. 9-1-51 PROTECTIVE DEVICES.

(a) Protective Devices in General. The owner or occupant of every premise receiv-
ing water supply shall apply and maintain suitable means of protection of the
premise supply, and all appliances thereof, against damage arising in any manner
from the use of the water supply, variation of water pressure, or any interrup-
tion of water supply. Particularly, such owner or occupant must protect water-
cooled compressors for refrigeration systems by means of high pressure safety
cutout devices. There shall likewise be provided means for the prevention of the
transmission of water ram or noise of operation of any valve or appliance
through the piping of their own or adjacent premises.

(b) Relief Valves. On all "closed systems" (i.e., systems having a check valve,
pressure regulator, or reducing valve, water filter or softener) an effective
pressure relief valve shall be installed either in the top tapping or the upper
side tapping of the hot water tank, or on the hot water distributing pipe
connection at the tank. No stop valve shall be placed between the hot water
tank z)md the relief valve or on the drain pipe. (See applicable Village plumbing
codes).

(c) Air Chambers. An air chamber or approved shock absorber shall be installed at
the terminus of each riser, fixture branch, or hydraulic elevator main for the
prevention of undue water hammer. The air chamber shall be sized in conform-
ance with local plumbing codes. Where possible, the air chamber should be
provided at its base with a valve for water drainage and replenishment of air.

SEC.9-1-52 WATER MAIN INSTALLATIONS IN PLATTED SUBDIVISIONS.

(a) Application for installation of water mains in regularly platted real estate
development subdivisions shall be filed with the Municipal Clerk and shall set
forth the following information:

(1) Name of subdivision.

(2) Legal description.

(3) Map showing streets, lots and sizes of proposed mains and hydrants, and
street laterals.

(4) Date of approval of subdivision plan by State Department of Development.

(5) Date of approval of proposed mains by State Department of Natural
Resources.

(6) Number of houses presently under construction.

(b) Upon receipt of the application, the water utility will prepare detailed estimates
of the cost of extending water mains and hydrants of the size deemed necessary
in the subdivision and submit same to the municipal governing body for approval
of the extension as it pertains to public fire-protection service requirements.

(c) The applicant for water service to be supplied to a subdivision shall be required
to advance to the utility, prior to the beginning of the construction, the total
estimated cost of the extension. If the final costs exceed estimated costs, an

Supp. 6-98



(d)

Sec. 9-1-52  Water Ultility Regulations and Rates

additional billing will be made for the balance of the cost due. This balance is
to be paid within thirty (30) days. If final costs are less than estimated, a
refund of overpayment will be made by the water utility.

If the developer, or a contractor employed by the developer, is to install the
water mains (with approval of the utility), the developer shall be responsible for
the total cost of construction.

SEC. 9-1-53 WATER MAIN EXTENSION RULE.

Water mains will be extended for new customers on the following basis:

(2)

(b)

(c)

Where the cost of the extension is to immediately be collected through assess-

ment by the Village against the abutting property, the procedure set forth under

Sec. 66.60, Wis. Stats., will apply, and no additional customer contribution to the

Utility will be required.

Where the Village is unwilling or unable to make a special assessment, the

extension will be made on a customer-financed basis as follows:

(1) The applicant(s) will advance as a contribution in aid of construction, the
total amount equivalent to that which would have been assessed for all
property under Subsection (a).

(2) Part of the contribution required in Subsection (b)(1) will be refundable.
When additional customers are connected to the extended main within
twenty (20) years of the date of completion, contributions in aid of
construction will be collected equal to the amount which would have been
assessed under Subsection (a) for the abutting property being served. This
amount will be refunded to the original contributor(s). In no case will the
contributions received from additional customers exceed the proportionate
amount which would have been required under Subsection (a) nor will it
exceed the total assessable cost of the original extension.

When a customer connects to a transmission main or connecting loop installed at

Utility expense within twenty (20) years of the date of completion, there will be

a contribution required of an amount equivalent to that which would have been

assessed under Subsection (a).

SEC.9-1-54 CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL.

(a)

(b)

Definition. A cross connection shall be defined as any physical connection or
arrangement between two otherwise separate systems, one of which contains
potable water from the Village water system, and the other, water from a
private source, water of unknown or questionable safety, or steam, gases, Or
chemicals, whereby there may be a flow from one system to the other, the
direction of flow depending on the pressure differential between the two systems.

Cross Connections Prohibited. No person, firm or corporation shall establish or
permit to be established or maintain or permit to be maintained any Ccross
connection. No interconnection shall be established whereby potable water from
a private, auxiliary or emergency water supply other than the regular public
water supply of the Village may enter the supply or distribution system of said
municipality, unless such private, auxiliary or emergency water supply and the
method of connection and use of such supply shall have been approved by the

Supp. 6-98

(7



()

(d)

(®)

(g)
(h)

Sec. 9-1-54  Water Ultility Regulations and Rates

Colfax Water and Sewer System Utility and by the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources in accordance with Section NR 111.25(3), Wisconsin
Administrative Code.

Inspections. It shall be the duty of the Colfax Water and Sewer System Ultility
to cause inspections to be made of all properties served by the public water
system where cross connections with the public water system 1s deemed possible.
The frequency of inspections and re-inspections based on potential health
hazards involved shall be as established by the Colfax Water and Sewer System
Utility and as approved by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.

Right to Inspect. Upon presentation of credentials, the representative of the
Colfax Water and Sewer System Utility shall have the right to request entry at
any reasonable time to examine any property served by a connection to the
public water system of the Village for cross connections. If entry is refused,
such representative shall obtain a special inspection warrant under Sec. 66.122,
Wis. Stats. On request the owner, lessee or occupant of any property so served
shall furnish to the inspection agency any pertinent information regarding the
piping system or systems on such property.

Discontinuation of Service. The Colfax Water and Sewer System Ultility is
hereby authorized and directed to discontinue water service to any property
wherein any connection in violation of this Section exists, and to take such
other precautionary measures deemed necessary to eliminate any danger of
contamination of the public water system. Water service shall be discontinued
only after reasonable notice and opportunity for hearing under Chapter 68, Wis.
Stats., except as provided in Subsection (f). Water service to such property
shall not be restored until the cross connection(s) has been eliminated in
compliance with the provisions of this Section.

Immediate Discontinuation. If it is determined by the Colfax Water and Sewer
System Utility that a cross connection or an emergency endangers public health,
safety or welfare and requires immediate action, and a written finding to that
effect is filed with the Village Clerk-Treasurer and delivered to the customer’s
premises, service may be immediately discontinued. The customer shall have an
opportunity for hearing under Chapter 68, Wis. Stats., within ten (10) days of
such emergency discontinuance.

State Code Adopted. The Village adopts by reference the State Plumbing Code
of Wisconsin being Chapter H 82, Wisconsin Administrative Code.

Section Not to Supercede Other Ordinances. This Section does not supercede the
State Plumbing Code and any Village plumbing ordinances but it supplementary to
them.

SEC. 9-1-55 PRIVATE WELL ABANDONMENT.

(2)

(b)

Purpose. The purpose of this Section is to prevent unused and/or improperly
constructed wells from serving as a passage for contaminated surface or near-
surface waters or other materials to reach the usable ground water. These wells
must be properly filled and sealed.

Coverage. All private wells located on any premises which is served by the
public water system of the Village shall be properly filled by June 30, 1983.
Only those wells for which a well operation permit has been granted by the
Village Clerk-Treasurer may be exempted from this requirement; subject to
conditions of maintenance and operation.

Supp. 6-98



(c)

(d)

(e)

Sec. 9-1-55  Water Utility Regulations and Rates

Well Operation Permits. A permit may be granted to a well owner to operate a
well for a period not to exceed one (1) year if the following requirements are
met. (Applications shall be made on forms provided by the Village Clerk.)

(1) The well and pump installation meet the requirements of Ch. NR 112, Wis.
Adm. Code, and a well constructor’s report is on file with the Department
of Natural Resources, or certification of the acceptability of the well has
been granted by the Private Water Supply Section of the Department of
Natural Resources.

(2) The well has a history of producing safe water and presently produces
bacteriologically safe water as evidenced by three (3) samplings two (2)
weeks apart.

(3) The proposed use of the well can be justified as being necessary in addition
to water provided by the public water system.

(4) No physical connection shall exist between the piping of the public water
system and the private well.

Methods. Wells to be abandoned shall be filled according to the procedures

outlined in Ch. NR 112, Wis. Adm. Code. The pump and piping must be removed

and the well checked for obstructions prior to plugging. Any obstruction or
liner must be removed.

Reports and Inspection. A well abandonment report must be submitted by the

well owner to the Department of Natural Resources on forms provided by the

agency (available at the office of the Village Clerk-Treasurer). The report shall
be submitted immediately upon completion of the filling of the well. The filling
must be observed by a representative of this Village.

Supp. 6-98



CHAPTER 2

Sewer Utility Regulations and Rates

Article A User Regulations
9-2-1 Compliance With Rules
9-2-2 Definitions
9-2-3 Use of the Public Sewers
G-2-4 Control of Industrial Wastes Directed to Public Sewers
9-2-5 Classes of Service
9-2-6 Right-of-Entry, Identification and Safety
9-2-7 Sewer Construction
9-2-8 Violations and Penalties
9-2-9 Credit for Water Not Discharged to Sewer
9-2-10 Sewer Main Extension Rule
9-2-11 through
9-2-19 Reserved for Future Use
Article B Rate Schedule
0-2-20 General Sewer Service Charge -- Smg-1
9-2-21 Commercial and Industrial Sewer Service -- Metered -- Smg-2
9.2-22 General Sewer Service -~ Unmetered -- Sum-1
9-2-23 Water and Sewer Lateral Installation Charge -- Cz-1

Supp. 6-98



Sec. 9-2-1  Sewer Utility Regulations and Rates

ARTICLE A

User Regulations

SEC.9-2-1 COMPLIANCE WITH RULES.

(a) All persons now receiving sewer service from the Colfax Water and Sewer
Utility, or who may hereafter make application therefore, shall be considered as
having agreed to be bound by the rules and regulations as filed with the Public
Service Commission of Wisconsin.

(b) Application for sewer service shall be made in writing on a form furnished by
the sewer utility. The application will contain the legal description of the
property to be served, name of the owner, the exact use to be made of the
service, and the size of the service connection.

SEC.9-2-2  DEFINITIONS.

(a) The following definitions are applicable to this Chapter:

(1)

2)

)

(6)

™
(8)
9)

(10)

Approving Authority. The superintendent of the utility, Board of Public
Works, or other designated official of the municipality, or their duly
authorized deputy, agent, or representative.

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD). The quantity of oxygen utilized in the
biochemical oxidation of organic matter in five (5) days at twenty degrees
Centigrade (200C), expressed as milligrams per liter. Quantitative determi-
nation of BOD shall be made in accordance with procedures set forth in
"Standard Methods".

Combined Sewer. A sewer receiving both surface runoff and sewage.

Chlorine Requirement. The amount of chlorine in milligrams per liter which
must be added to sewage to produce a residual as specified in the Wisconsin
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System.

Garbage. The residue from the preparation, cooking, and dispensing of
food, and from the handling, storage, and sale of food products and
produce.

Ground Garbage. The residue from the preparation, cooking, and dispensing
of food that has been shredded to such a degree that all particles will be
carried freely in suspension under the flow conditions normally prevailing in
public sewers with no particle greater than one-half (1/2) inch in any
dimension.

Industrial Waste. The wastewater from industrial process, trade, or
business, as distinct from sanitarv sewage, including cooling water and the
discharge from sewage pretreatment facilities.

Natural Outlet. Any outlet, including storm sewers and combined sewer
overflows, into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake, or other body of surface
water or ground waters.

Parts Per Million, A weight-to-weight ratio. The parts per million value
multiplied by the factor 8.34 is equivalent to pounds per million gallons of
water.

Person. Any and all persons, including any individual, firm, company,
municipal or private corporation, association, society, institution, enterprise,
governmental agency, or other entity.

Supp. 6-98



SEC. 9-2-3

(11)

(12)

(13)
(14)

(15)
(16)

(17)

(18)
(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

Sec. 9-2-2  Sewer Ultility Regulations and Rates

Sanitary Sewage. A combination of water-carried wastes from residences,
business buildings, institutions, and industrial plants (other than industrial
wastes from such plants); together with such ground, surface, and storm
waters as may be present.

Sanitary Sewer. A sewer that conveys wastewater, industrial wastes or a
combination of both, and into which storm, surface, and ground waters or
unpolluted industrial wastes are not intentionally admitted.

Sewage. The spent water of a community. The preferred term is
"wastewater".

Sewer. A pipe or conduit for conveying sewage or any other waste liquids,
including storm, surface, and ground water drainage.

“Shall" is mandatory; "May" is permissible.

Slug. Any discharge of sewage or industrial waste which in concentration
of any given constituent exceeds more than five (5) times the average
twenty-four (24) hour concentration during normal operation, or the
discharge of any volume of liquid waste which exceeds more than five (5)
times in quantity of flow for a period of fifteen (15) minutes or more, the
normal twenty-four (24) hour average discharge and shall adversely affect
the collection system and/or performance of the wastewater treatment
plant.

Standard Methods. The examination and analytical procedures set forth in
the most recent edition of "Standard Methods for the Examination of Water,
Sewage and Industrial Wastes" published jointly by the American Public
Health Association, the American Water Works Association, and the
Federation of Sewage and Industrial Wastes Associations.

Storm Sewer. A sewer that carries storm, surface, and ground water
drainage but excludes sewage and industrial wastes.

Suspended Solids. Solids that either float on the surface of, or are in
suspension in, water, wastewater, or industrial waste, and which are
removable by a laboratory filtration device. Quantitative determination of
suspended solids shall be made in accordance with procedures set forth in
"Standard Methods".

Wastewater. A combination of the liquid and water-carried wastes from
residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants, and institutions, together
with any ground water, surface water, and storm water that may be
present.

Wastewater Collection System. The system of sewers and appurtenances for
the collection, transportation and pumping of wastewater and industrial
wastes.

Wastewater Treatment Plant. An assemblage of devices, structures, and
equipment for treating and disposing of wastewater and industrial wastes.

USE OF THE PUBLIC SEWERS.

(a) Sanitary Sewers. No person shall cause to be discharged any storm water,
surface drainage, subsurface drainage, ground water, roof runoff, cooling water,
or unpolluted water into any sanitary sewer.

Prohibitions and Limitations. Except as hereinafter provided, no person shall
discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following described waters or
wastes to any public sewer.

(b)

Supp. 6-98



(D
2)

(6)

Sec. 9-2-3  Sewer Utility Regulations and Rates

Any gasoline, benzine, naphtha, fuel oil, or other flammable or explosive
liquid, solid, or gas.
Any waters or wastes containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, or gases
in sufficient quantity, either singly or by interaction with other wastes, to
injure or interfere with any wastewater treatment process, or constitute a
hazard to humans or animals or create any hazard in the receiving waters
of the wastewater treatment plant.
Any waters or wastes having a pH lower than five (5.0) or having any
other corrosive property capable of causing damage or hazard to structures,
equipment, and personnel of the wastewater treatment plant.
Any waters or wastes having a pH in excess of ten (10.0).
Solid or viscous substances in quantities or of such size capable of causing
obstruction to the flow in sewers, or other interference with the proper
operations of the wastewater collection and treatment facilities such as, but
not limited to, ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags,
feathers, tar, plastics, wood, unground garbage, whole blood, paunch
manure, hair and fleshings, entrails, and paper dishes, cups, milk containers,
etc., either whole or ground by garbage grinders.
No persons shall discharge or cause to be discharged the following
described substances, materials, waters or wastes if it appears likely in the
opinion of the Approving Authority that such wastes can harm either the
sewers, wastewater treatment plant or equipment, have an adverse affect on
the receiving stream, or can otherwise endanger life, limb, property, or
constitute a nuisance. In forming their opinion as to the acceptability of
these wastes, the Approving Authority will give consideration to the sewers,
nature of the wastewater treatment process, capacity of the wastewater
treatment plant, and other pertinent factors. The substances prohibited are:

a. Any liquid or vapor having a temperature higher than one hundred fifty
degrees Fahrenheit (1509F).

b. Any water or waste containing fats, wax, grease, or oils, whether
emulsified or not which will or may cause obstruction to the flow in a
sewer or other interference with the operation of the wastewater
system.

c. Any commercial garbage that has not been properly shredded. The
installation and operation of any commercial grinder equipped with a
motor of one (1) horsepower or greater shall be subject to the review
and approval of the Approving Authority.

d. Any waters or wastes containing iron, chromium, copper, zinc, mercury,
and similar objectionable or toxic substances; or wastes exerting an
excessive chlorine requirement, to such a degree that any such material
received in the composite wastewater at the wastewater treatment plant
exceeds the limits established by the Approving Authority for such
materials.

e. Any waters or wastes containing phenols or other taste or odor
producing substances in such concentrations exceeding limits which may
be established by the Approving Authority as necessary after treatment
of the composite wastewater, to meet the requirements of the State,
Federal or other public agencies of jurisdiction for such discharge to
the receiving waters.

Supp. 6-98

L5



(c)

Sec. 9-2-3  Sewer Ultility Regulations and Rates

f.  Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or concentration as
may exceed limits established by the Approving Authority in compliance
with State or Federal Regulations.

g. Any water or wastes which, by interaction with other water or wastes
in the sanitary sewer system, release obnoxious gases, for suspended
solids which interfere with the collection system or create a condition
deleterious to structures and treatment process.

h. Materials which exert or cause:

1. Unusual B.O.D. chemical oxygen demand, or chlorine requirements in
such quantities as to constitute a significant load on the waste-
water treatment plant.

2. Unusual volume of flow or concentration of wastes constituting
"slugs" as defined herein.

3. Unusual concentrations of inert suspended solids (such as, but not
limited to, fuller’s earth, lime slurries, and lime residues) or of
dissolved solids (such as, but not limited to, sodium sulfate).

4. Excessive discoloration (such as, but not limited to, dye wastes and
vegetable tanning solutions).

5. Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amenable to
treatment or reduction by the wastewater treatment processes
employed, or are amenable to treatment only to such degree that
the wastewater treatment plant effluent cannot meet the require-
ments of the Department of Natural Resources, Division of
Environmental Protection of the State of Wisconsin.

Special Arrangements. No statement contained in this Article shall be construed
as prohibiting any special agreement between the Approving Authority and any
person whereby an industrial waste of unusual strength or character may be
admitted to the sewage disposal works, either before or after pretreatment,
provided that there is no impairment of the functioning of the sewage disposal
works by reason of the admission of such wastes, and no extra costs are
incurred by the utility without recompense by the person.

SEC.9-24  CONTROL OF INDUSTRIAL WASTES DIRECTED TO

(2)

(b)

PUBLIC SEWERS.

Industrial Discharges. If any waters or wastes are discharged, or proposed to be
discharged to the public sewers, which waters or wastes contain substances or
possess the characteristics enumerated in Section 9-2-3(b), and which in the
judgment of the Approving Authority, have a deleterious effect upon the
wastewater collection or treatment facilities, processes, equipment, or receiving
waters, or which otherwise create a hazard to life, health, or constitute a public
nuisance, the Approving Authority may:

(1) Reject the wastes.

(2) Require treatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to the public

Sewers.
(3) Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge.
Control Manholes.

(1) Each person discharging industrial wastes into a public sewer shall con-
struct and maintain one (1) or more control manholes or access points to
facilitate observation, measurement, and sampling of his wastes, including
domestic sewage.

Supp. 6-98

2.4



(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(8

(b)

Sec. 9-2-4  Sewer Ultility Regulations and Rates

(2) Control manholes or access facilities shall be located and built in a manner
acceptable to the Approving Authority. If measuring and/or sampling
devices are to be permanently installed, they shall be of a type acceptable
to the Approving Authority.

(3) Control manholes, access facilities, and related equipment shall be installed
by and at the expense of the person discharging the waste, and shall be
maintained by that person so as to be in safe condition, accessible, and in
proper operating condition at all times. Plans for installation of the
control manholes or access facilities and related equipment shall be
approved by the Approving Authority prior to the beginning of construction.

Measurement of Flow. The volume of flow used for computing industrial waste

collection and treatment charges shall be the metered water consumption of the

person as shown in the records of meter reading maintained by the Utility’s
water department.

Metering of Waste. Devices for measuring the volume of waste discharged may

be required by the Approving Authority if the volume cannot otherwise be

determined from the metered water consumption records. Metering devices for
determining the volume of waste shall be installed, owned, and maintained by the
person to accuracy standards acceptable to the Approving Authority and the

Public Service Commission. Following approval and installation, such meters may

not be removed without the consent of the Approving Authority.

Provision for Deductions. In the event that a person discharging industrial

waste into the public sewers produces evidence satisfactory to the Approving

Authority that more than ten percent (10%) of the total annual volume of water

used for all purposes does not reach the public sewer, then the determination of

the water consumption to be used in computing the waste volume discharged into
the public sewer may be made a matter of agreement between the Approving

Authority and the person.

Waste Sampling.

(1) Industrial wastes discharged into the public sewers shall be subject to
periodic inspection and a determination of character and concentration of
said wastes. The determinations shall be made by the industry as often as
may be deemed necessary by the Approving Authority.

(2) Samples shall be collected in such a manner as to be representative of the
composition of the wastes. The sampling may be accomplished either
manually or by the use of mechanical equipment acceptable to the
Approving Authority.

(3) Installation, operation and maintenance of the sampling facilities shall be
the responsibility of the person discharging the waste and shall be subject
to the approval of the Approving Authority or its duly authorized represen-
tative at all times. Every care shall be exercised in the collection of
samples to insure their preservation in a state comparable to that at the
time the sample was taken.

Pretreatment. Where required, in the opinion of the Approving Authority, to
modify or eliminate wastes that are harmful to the structures, processes or
operation of the wastewater collection or treatment plant, the person shall
provide, at his/her expense, such preliminary treatment or processing facilities as
may be determined required to render his wastes acceptable for admission to the
public sewers.

Grease, Oil and Sand Interceptors. Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be

provided when, in the opinion of the Approving Authority, they are necessary for

Supp. 6-98



Sec. 9-2-4  Sewer Utility Regulations and Rates

the proper handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excessive amounts or

any flammable wastes, and/or other harmful ingredients; except that such

interceptors shall not be required for private living quarters or dwelling units.

All interceptors shall be of a type readily accessible for cleaning and inspection.

In maintaining these interceptors, the owner(s) shall be responsible for the

proper removal and disposal by appropriate means of the captured material and

shall maintain records of the dates and means of disposal which are subject to
review by the Approving Authority. Disposal of the collected materials per-
formed by owner’s (s’) personnel or currently licensed waste disposal firms must
be in accordance with currently acceptable Wisconsin Department of Natural

Resources rules and regulations.

(i) Analyses.

(1) Laboratory procedures used in the examination of industrial wastes shall be
those set forth in "Standard Methods". However, alternate methods for
certain analyses of industrial wastes may be used subject to mutual
agreement between the Approving Authority and the person.

(2) Determination of the character and concentration of the industrial wastes
shall be made by the person discharging the wastes or by the person’s
agent, as designated and required by the Approving Authority. The Utility
may also make its own analyses on the wastes and these determinations
shall be binding as a basis for charges.

() Submission of Information. Plans, specifications and any other pertinent
information relating to proposed preliminary treatment of processing facilities
shall be submitted for review of the Approving Authority prior to the start of
their construction if the effluent from such facilities is to be discharged into the
public sewers.

SEC.9-2-5  CLASSES OF SERVICE.

(a) General Service. Normal or domestic wastewater is defined as having the
organic concentration of Biochemical Oxygen Demand (B.O.D.) and Suspended
Solids (S.S.) specified in Schedule Smg-1 of the rate file.

(b) High-Strength Standards. All establishments discharging high-strength wastes
into the public sanitary sewer system shall be billed in accordance with the
High-Strength Service Charge specified in Schedule Smg-2 of the rate file. The
volume of flow used for computing the wastewater surcharge shall be metered
water consumption as shown in records maintained by the water utility subject
to adjustment as otherwise herein provided, or the actual volume of wastewater
as determined by a waste metering installation.

SEC.9-2-6 RIGHT-OF-ENTRY, IDENTIFICATION AND SAFETY.

Superintendent of the utility or other duly authorized employee of the Village or
Utility bearing proper credentials and identification shall be permitted to enter all
properties for the purpose of inspection, observation, testing, all in accordance with
the provisions of these rules and regulations and Sec. 196.171, Wis. Stats. The
superintendent of the Utility shall have no authority to inquire into any process
beyond that point having a direct bearing on the kind and source of discharge to the
sewers or waterways or facilities for wastewater treatment. While performing the
necessary work, the authorized person shall observe all safety rules applicable to the
premises established by the property owner.

Supp. 6-98

A%



Sec. 9-2-7  Sewer Utility Regulations and Rates

SEC. 9-2-7 SEWER CONSTRUCTION.

(2)

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(g)

(h)

Work Authorized. No unauthorized person shall uncover, make any connections
with or opening into, use, alter or disturb any public sewer or appurtenance
thereof, without first obtaining a written permit from the Approving Authority.

Cost of Sewer Connection. All costs and expense incident to the installation and
connection of the building sewer shall be borne by the owner.

Use of Old Building Sewers. Old building sewers may be used in connection with
new buildings only when they are found, on examination and tests by the
Approving Authority, to meet all requirements of this Chapter.

Materials and Methods of Construction. The size, slope, alignment, materials of
construction of a building sewer, and the methods to be used in excavating,
placing of the pipe, jointing, testing and backfilling the trench, shall all conform
to the requirements of the building and plumbing code or other applicable rules
and regulations of the Village. In the absence of code provisions or in amplifi-
cation thereof, the materials and procedures set forth in appropriate specifi-
cations of the A.S.T.M. and W.P.C.F. Manual of Practice No. 9 shall apply.

Building Sewer Grade. Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be brought to
the building at an elevation below the basement floor. In all buildings in which
any building drain is too low to permit gravity flow to the public sewer, sanitary
sewage carried by such building drain shall be lifted by an approved means and
discharged to the building sewer.

Storm and Ground Water Drains. No person shall make connection of roof
downspouts, exterior foundation drains, area-way drains or other sources of
surface runoff or ground water to a building sewer or building drain which is
connected directly or indirectly to a public sanitary sewer.

Conformance to Plumbing Codes. The connection of the building sewer into the
public sewer shall conform to the requirements of the building and plumbing code
or other applicable rules and regulations of the Village, or the procedures set
forth in appropriate specifications of the A.S.T.M. and the W.P.C.F. Manual of
Practice No. 9. All such connections shall be made gas tight and water tight.
Any deviation from the prescribed procedures and materials must be approved by
the Approving Authority before installation.

Inspection of Connection. The applicant for the building sewer permit shall
notify the Approving Authority when the building sewer is ready for inspection
and connection to the public sewer. The connection shall be made under the
supervision of the Approving Authority.

Barricades; Restoration. All excavations for the building sewer installation shall
be adequately guarded with barricades and lights so as to protect the public from
hazard. Streets, sidewalks, parkways and other public property disturbed in the
course of the work shall be restored 1n a manner satisfactory to the Village.

SEC.9-2-8  VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.

(2)

Written Notice of Violation. Any person found to be violating any provision of
these rules and regulations shall be served by the Approving Authority with a
written notice stating the nature of the violation and providing a reasonable
time for the satisfactory correction thereof. The offender shall, within the
period of time stated in such notice, permanently cease all violations.

Supp. 6-98



Sec. 9-2-8  Sewer Ultility Regulations and Rates

(b) Accidental Discharge. Any person found to be responsible for accidentally
allowing a deleterious discharge into the sewer which causes damage to the
treatment facilities, receiving body of water and/or downstream waters shall, in
addition to a forfeiture, pay the amount to cover damages, both values to be
established by the Approving Authority.

SEC.9-2-9  CREDIT FOR WATER NOT DISCHARGED TO SEWER.

If a portion of the water furnished to any customer is not discharged into the sewer
system, the quantity of such water will be deducted in computing the charge for
sewer service, provided a meter has been installed to measure such water. The
customer must, at his/her own expense, make necessary changes in the water piping
and install couplings so that a meter can be set. See rate Schedule Am-1 for
applicable charges.

SEC.9-2-10 SEWER MAIN EXTENSION RULE.

Sewer mains will be extended for new customers on the following basis:

(a) Where the cost of the extension is to immediately be collected through assess-
ment by the municipality against the abutting property, the procedure set forth
under Sec. 66.60, Wis. Stats., will apply, and no additional customer contribution
to the utility will be required.

(b) Where the municipality is unwilling or unable to make a special assessment, the
extension will be made on a customer-financed basis as follows:

(1) The applicant(s) will advance as a contribution in aid of construction, the
total amount equivalent to that which would have been assessed for all
property under Subsection (a).

(2) Part of the contribution required in Subsection (b)(1) will be refundable.
When additional customers are connected to the extended main within
twenty (20) years of the date of completion, contributions in aid of
construction will be collected equal to the amount which would have been
assessed under Subsection (a) for the abutting property being served. This
amount will be refunded to the original contributor(s). In no case will the
contributions received from additional customers exceed the proportionate
amount which would have been required under Subsection (a), nor will it
exceed the total assessable cost of the original extension.

(¢c) When a customer connects to an existing main installed at utility expense within
twenty (20) years of the date of completion, there will be a contribution
required of an amount equivalent to that which would have been assessed under
Subsection (a).

SEC. 9-2-11 THROUGH SEC. 9-2-19 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

Supp. 6-98

2%



Sec. 9-2-11 Sewer Utility Regulations and Rates

SEC. 9-2-11 MISCELLANEOUS RULES & REGULATIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d

The utility shall maintain the sewer service within the limits of the Village of Colfax. The
property owner shall maintain the sewer lateral from the public sewer main to the structurc or
building on the owner's property, which maintenance shall include payment of all expenses
associated with replacement, cleaning and maintenance of the lateral line. The utility shall be
responsible for replacement cost of the curb, gutter, and any street repairs. except that the property
owner shall be charged a street-opening fee of $1,000.00. The property owner must notify the
Village prior to initiating work on any lateral maintenance. It shall be the property owner's
obligation to keep the sewer service lateral free of defective conditions at all times.

The owner of each parcel of land adjacent to a sewer main on which there exists a building usable
for human habitation or in a block through which such system is extended, shall connect to such
system within thirty (30) days of notice in writing from the Village Board. Upon failure to so do
the Board may cause such connection to be made and bill the property owner for such costs. If
such costs are not paid within thirty (30) days, such costs shall be assessed as a special tax lien
against the property, all pursuant to Sec. 281.45, Wis. Stats.; provided, however, that the owner
may within thirty (30) days after the completion of the work file a written opinion with the Village
Clerk stating that he cannot pay such amount in one (1) sum and ask that there be levied in not to
exceed five (5) equal installments and that the amount shall be so collected with interest at the rate
of twelve percent (12%) annum from the completion of the work, the unpaid balance being a
special tax lien, all pursuant to Sec. 281.45. Wis. Stats.

In lieu of the above the Village Board at its option may impose a penalty for the period that the
violation continues, after ten (10) days written notice to any owner failing to make a connection to
the sewer system, of an amount equal to one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the minimum
quarterly charge for sewer service payable quarterly for the period in which the failure to connect
continues, and upon failure to make such payment said charge shall be assessed as a special tax
lien against the property, all pursuant to Sec. 281.45, Wis. Stats.

This Section ordains that the failure to connect to the sewer system is contrary to the minimum
health standards of said Village of Colfax and fails to assure preservation of public health, comfort,

and safety of said Village.

When any sewer service is to be re-laid, and there are two or more buildings on said service, each
building shall be disconnected from said service. and a new sewer service shall be installed for

each building.

A quarterly wastewater system maintenance fee of $10.00 is hereby established, and will be
applied to all classes of wastewater system users.

Supp. 2-10

29



2022-03 ORDINANCE AMENDMENT - SEC. 9-2-11

AN ORDINANCE REGARDING SEWER UTILITY REGULATIONS AND RATES.

The Village Board of the Village of Colfax, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1. 2022-03 Ordinance Amendment to retract and repeal 2018-4

Ordinance Amendment that was effective August 1, 2018 which
retracted and repealed Section 9-2-11 of the Code of Ordinances of
the Village of Colfax, Wisconsin:

SEC. 9-2-11 MISCELLANEOUS RULES & REGULATIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

The utility shall maintain the sewer service within the limits of the Village of Colfax. The property owner
shall maintain the sewer lateral from the public sewer main to the structure or building on the owner's
property, which maintenance shall include payment of all expenses associated with replacement,
cleaning and maintenance of the lateral line. The utility shall be responsible for contracting or repairing
the curb, gutter, and any street repairs and the property owner shall be billed-fortheactualcostofthe
repairs charged the street-opening fee at the time the construction/access street-opening permit is
requested. The property owner must notify the Village prior to initiating work on any lateral
maintenance. It shall be the property owner's obligation to keep the sewer service lateral free of
defective conditions at all times.

The owner of each parcel of land adjacent to a sewer main on which there exists a building usable for
human habitation or in a block through which such system is extended, shall connect to such system
within thirty (30) days of notice in writing from the Village Board. Upon failure to so do the Board may
cause such connection to be made and bill the property owner for such costs. If such costs are not paid
within thirty (30) days, such costs shall be assessed as a special tax lien against the property, all pursuant
to Sec. 281.45, Wis. Stats.; provided, however, that the owner may within thirty (30) days after the
completion of the work file a written opinion with the Village Clerk stating that he cannot pay such
amount in one (1) sum and ask that there be levied in not to exceed five (5) equal installments and that
the amount shall be so collected with interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) annum from the
completion of the work, the unpaid balance being a special tax lien, all pursuant to Sec. 281.45, Wis.
Stats.

In lieu of the above the Village Board at its option may impose a penalty for the period that the violation
continues, after ten {10) days written notice to any owner failing to make a connection to the sewer
system, of an amount equal to one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the minimum quarterly charge for
sewer service payable quarterly for the period in which the failure to connect continues, and upon
failure to make such payment said charge shall be assessed as a special tax lien against the property, all
pursuant to Sec. 281.45, Wis. Stats.

This Section ordains that the failure to connect to the sewer system is contrary to the minimum health
standards of said Village of Colfax and fails to assure preservation of public health, comfort, and safety
of said Village.

When any sewer service is to be re-laid, and there are two or more buildings on said service, each
building shall be disconnected from said service, and a new sewer service shall be installed for each
building.



(d) A quarterly wastewater system maintenance fee of $12.50 is hereby established, and will be applied to
all classes of wastewater system users.

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as
required by law.

Adopted: _09/12/2022

Published: _ 09/28/2022

Village President

Village Clerk



Village of Colfax

Box 417 - Colfax, Wisconsin 54730 — Phone 715-962-3311
Fax 715-962-2221

Jody Albricht, President
Lynn M. Niggemann, Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer

CONSTRUCTION/ACCESS PERMIT
RECOMMENDATION AND APPROVAL

Applicant (s):

Description:

Purpose:

Location/Street:

The undersigned applicant(s) hereby request from the Village of Colfax, a temporary permit to occupy and use municipal land
for the above stated purpose, and to operate necessary equipment thereon. The applicant(s) shall restore the disturbed site;
including replacement and compaction with clean, proper backfill material; and the installation of base course to restore the
disturbed area to village street ordinance specifications, prior to paving. The applicant(s) shall preserve, protect, remove, or
plant any vegetation that may be deemed desirable to prevent soil erosion. The applicant(s) shall apply topsoil, seeding and
mulch to the disturbed area.

This permit shall terminate upon completion of the construction project for which this instrument if given.

(Applicant) (Date)
(Applicant) (Date)
Street Department
Recommendation:
(Supervisor) (Date)
Approved By
Street Committee
Chairperson:
(Signature) (Date)
Project Name: Parcel #:
Fee: $2,500.00 Received on day of ,20___ BY:

Construction/Access Street Opening Permit Doc. Revised 09/12/2022



Sec. 9-2-12  Sewer Utility Regulations and Rates

SEC.9-2-12 VACATING OF PREMISES AND DISCONTINUANCE CF
SERVICE.

Whenever premises served by the system are to be vacated, or whenever any person
desires to discontinue service from the system; the system must be notified in writing.
The owner of the premises shall be liable for any damages to the property or suc
damage which may be discovered having occurred to the property of the system other
than through the faunlt of the system or its employees, representatives, or agents.

SEC. 9-2-13 CHARGES ARE A LIEN ON PROPERTY.

All sewer services, charges, and special assessments shall be a lien on a lot, part of a
lot, or land on which sewer services were supplied. All sums which have accrued
during the preceding year and which are unpaid by the first day of October and any
year, shall be certified to the Village Clerk-Treasurer to be placed on the taxroll for
collection as provided by Wisconsin Statutes.

SEC. 9-2-14 UNIT OF SERVICE DEFINITION.

(a) - A "unit of service" shall consist of any residential, commercial, industrial, or
charitable aggregation of space or area occupied for a distinct purpose such as a
residence, apartment, flat, store, office, industrial plant, church, or school. Each
unit of service shall be regarded as one (1) consumer. Suites in houses, or
apartments with complete housekeeping functions (such as cooking), shall be
classed as apartment houses; thus houses and apartments having suites of one
(1), two (2§, or more rooms with toilet facilities, but without kitchen for
cooking, are classed as roorning, houses.

(b) When a conguirer’s premises has several buildings, for which services are eligible
and such buildings are used in the same business and connected by the user, the
Village shall set a separate rate for such complex.

SEC. 9-2-15  AROFTION OF OTEER RULES.

There is hereby adopted all the rules and regulations of the State Plumbing and State
Building Codes and the building rules of the Department of Industry, Labor and Fluman
Relations; and the Department of MNatural Resources of the State of Wisconsin insofar
as the same are applicable i = Vikiege of Colfax, AT cvicsooms of the system will
comply witli aiministraiive rales Ni< 108 and NR 116 of ihie Mepuwwend of Natural
Resources,

SEC. 9-2-16 THROUGH SEC. -2-19 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.



Sec. 9-2-20 Sewer Utility Regulations and Rates
ARTICLE B

Rate Schedule

SEC. 9-2-20 GENERAL SEWER SERVICE - METERED - SMG-1.

(@
Quarterly Sewer Charges
Meter size (inches) Fixed Quarterly Charge UuP ad 01"‘0l
5/8 and 3/4 $33.79 . 1o
1 $38.61 in 20
11/4 $43.45
11/2 $48.27
2 $57.92
3 $86.87
4 $120.66
6 $202.73
8 $313.73

(b) Plus Volume Charge. For each one thousand (1,000) gallons domestic strength sewage
discharged to the sanitary sewer system — Fwo-and-77/1 00-Dollars{$2.77) per one thousand
(1,000) gallons. Eve and 15/i00 muilars (% 5.19)

(c) Water Not Discharged to Sewer. If a portion of the water furnished to any customer is
not discharged into the sewer system, the amount of such water will be deducted in computing the
sewer service charge, provided a separate meter is installed. The customer must, at his/her own
expense, make necessary changes in the water piping and install couplings so that a meter can be

set. See Schedule AM-1 for charges.
(d) Lawn Sprinkling. Where water is used for lawn sprinkling, the sewer bill for the months

of July, August and September in each year shall be based on water consumption during the
preceding billing period unless consumption during each preceding quarter was greater than in the

summer quarter.
(e) Billing. Billing shall be the same as Schedule Mg-1.

SEC. 9-2-21 COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL SEWER SERVICE -
METERED - SMG-2.

(a) Calculation of Bill. When the sewage from any contributor does not exceed the strength
limitations of two hundred fifty (250) mg/1 for B.O.D. and for Suspended Solids, the sewer bill
shall be calculated under Schedule Smg-1. Where the waste of any contributor exceeds the above
strength, a periodic sampling shall be taken and the sewage analyzed to determine the strength of
said waste, which will be billed at the following rates:

(b) Quarterly Service Charge. Same as Schedule SMg-1.

(©) Volume Charge. Charge shall be comprised as follows:

45,5
Volume -- $2:-77 per 1,000 gallons.
Bio-Chemical Oxygen Demand (B.O.D.) -- $.16.1 per pound in excess of

250 mg/1.
Suspended Solids (S.S.) -- $.16.4 per pound in excess of 250 mg/1.

(d) Billing. Same as Schedule Smg-1.
Supp. 1-10

3|



Sec. 9-2-20 Sewer Utility Regulations and Rates
SEC. 9-2-22 GENERAL SEWER SERVICE — UNMETERED - SUM-1.

() Applicability. Service shall be billed at the rate of Fifty-seven and 81/100 Dollars
($57.81) per quarter. This rate shall be applied only to single-family residential and small
commercial customers and approximates the cost for thirteen thousand (13,000) gallons per
quarter discharged to the sewer system. If it is determined by the utility that the user discharges
more than thirteen thousand (13,000) gallons per quarter to the system, an additional charge of
Two and- 77100 Dollars {2:77)-per one thousand (1,000) gallons will be made for estimated
additional usage. ' TYC¢ and 15/, 606 Dollars (3 S, 15)
(b)  Billing. Same as Schedule Mg-1.

SEC. 9-2-23 WATER AND SEWER LATERAL INSTALLATION
CHARGE - CZ-1

The initial water service lateral will be installed from the main through the curb stop and box and
the initial sewer service lateral will be installed from the main to the property line by the utility,

for which there will be made a charge as follows:

Actual Cost
Actual Cost
Actual Cost

[ (a) 1-inch copper water service
(b) 4-inch sewer service
(c) Larger sized services

Supp. 1-10

217



CHAPTER 4

Miscellaneous Utilities Regulations

1 Management of Village Waterworks and Sanitary Sewer System
-2 Water and Sewer Utilities Combined

SEC.94-1 MANAGEMENT OF VILLAGE WATERWORKS AND SANITARY

SEWER SYSTEM.

(a) Committee on Public Works to Administer. The operation of the Village water

(b)

and sanitary sewer systems shall be under the jurisdiction of the Committee on

Public Works of the Village Board.

Duties of Committee.

(1) The Committee on Public Works shall have entire charge and management of
the waterworks and sanitary and storm sewer systems and the sewage
disposal plant of the Village of Colfax under the general control of the
Village Board.

(2) The Committee shall see that all officials and employees under its jurisdic-
tion perform their duties and shall from time to time report and recommend
to the Village Board any repairs, additions or improvements to such systems
as they deem necessary.

(3) The Committee of Public Works shall exercise general executive supervision
over the Village waterworks and sewage disposal plant and the sewer and
water utility system.

SEC.94-2  WATER AND SEWER UTILITIES COMBINED.

For the purpose of acquiring economy and convenience, the water and sewer utilities
of the Village of Colfax are hereby combined into one (1) public utility pursuant to
Sec. 66.077, Wis. Stats., quantities of water as may be demanded for the purpose of
extinguishing fires within the Village limits. For all other purposes the metered or
other special rates as may be established shall apply.

(a) General Public Service. Water service supplied Village buildings, schools, etc.

(b)

shall be metered and the regular service rates applied. Water used for flushing
sewers, street sprinkling, flooding skating rinks, drinking fountains, etc. shall be
metered where meters can be set to measure the service. Where it is impossible
to measure such service, the Committee shall estimate the gallons of water used,
based on the pressure, size of opening and period of time water is allowed to
flow. The estimated quantity shall be billed at twenty cents (20¢) per one
thousand (1,000) gallons.

General Water Service — Unmetered. Where the utility is temporarily unable to
install a water meter, general service will be supplied on the following basis:
Single-family home or small commercial user -- Three and 75/100 Dollars ($3.75)
per quarter.



9-4-3 WELLHEAD PROTECTION.

(1) CONSTRUCTION OF ORDINANCE
(a) TITLE — This chapter shall be known, cited, and referred to as the “Wellhead

Protection Ordinance™ (hereafter WHP ORDINANCE).

(b) PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY

1. The residents of the Village of Colfax (hereafter Village) depend exclusively
on groundwater for a safe drinking water supply. Certain land use practices
and activities can seriously threaten or degrade groundwater quality. The
purpose of the WHP Ordinance is to institute land use regulations and
restrictions to protect the Village municipal water supply and well fields, and
to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of the residents of
the Village.

2. These regulations are established pursuant to the authority granted to
Villages by the Wisconsin Legislature in ss. 62.23(7) Wis. Stats. to adopt
ordinances to protect groundwater.

(c) APPLICABILITY. The regulations specified in the WHP ORDINANCE shall

apply within the Village boundary limits.

(2) DEFINITIONS

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e

®

EXISTING FACILITIES - “Existing facilities” means current facilities,
practices, and activities that may cause or threaten to cause environmental
pollution within that portion of the Village’s wellhead protection area that lies
within the corporate limits of the Village. Existing facilities include but are not
limited to the type listed in the Department of Natural Resources’ form 3300-215,
Public Water Supply Potential Contaminant Use Inventory Form.
GROUNDWATER DIVIDE — “Groundwater divide” means a ridge in the water
table or the potentiometric surface from which groundwater flows away at right
angles in both directions. The line of highest hydraulic head in the water table or
potentiometric surface represents a groundwater divide.

GROUNDWATER PROTECTION OVERLAY DISTRICT - “Groundwater
protection overlay district” means that area described within the Village’s
wellhead protection plan. A copy of the Village’s wellhead protection plan shall
be available from the Village Clerk.

RECHARGE AREA — “Recharge area” means the land area that contributes
water to a well by infiltration of water into the subsurface and movement of
groundwater toward the well.

TIME OF TRAVEL — “Time of travel” means the determined or estimated time
required for a contaminant to move in the saturated zone from a specific point to a
well.

WELL FIELD — “Well field” means a piece of land used primarily for the
purpose of supplying a location for construction of wells to supply a municipal

water system.

(3) GROUNDWATER PROTECTION OVERLAY DISTRICT (hereafter DISTRICT).

(a) INTENT. The area to be protected as a District is based on the delineated

Source Water Protection Areas in the Colfax Area Source Water Protection Plan
(February 2008).

These lands are subject to land use and development restrictions because of their
close proximity to the well fields and the corresponding high threat of contamination.

(b) PERMITTED USES. Subject to the exemptions listed in section (3)(e), the

following are the only permitted uses within the DISTRICT. Uses not listed are
to be considered non-permitted uses.

Supp. 04-10



1. Parks provided there is no on-site waste disposal or fuel storage tank

facilities associated with this use.

Playgrounds.

Wildlife areas.

Non-motorized trails. such as biking, skiing, nature and fitness trails.

Municipally sewered residential development, free of flammable and

combustible liquid underground storage tanks.

6. Potential Contaminant Sources in the Protection Area listed in the
“Colfax Area Source Water Protection Plan-February-2008™ or any
subsequent “Colfax Area Source Water Protection Plan” in effect at
the time of the petition will be considered on a case by case basis,
when the procedure below is followed:

(a) Individuals andsor Facilities may request the VILLAGE to
permit additional land uses in the DISTRICT.

(b) All requests shall be in writing either on or in substantial
compliance with forms to be provided by the VILLAGE and shall
include an environmental assessment report prepared by a licensed
environmental engineer. Said report shall be forwarded to the
VILLAGE ENGINEER and/or designee(s) for recommendation and
final decision by the VILLAGE BOARD.

(c) The Individual/Facility shall reimburse the VILLAGE for all
consultant fees associated with this review at the invoiced amount
plus administrative costs.

(d) Any permitted uses shall be conditional and may include
required environmental and safety monitoring consistent with local,
state and federal requirements, and/or bonds and/or sureties
satisfactory to the VILLAGE, as well as compliance with all
requirements of this ordinance.

PP

(c) SEPARATION DISTANCES. The following separation distances as specified
in s. NR 811.16(4)(d), Wis. Adm. Code, shall be maintained and shall not be
exempted as listed in section (3)(¢).

1.

5

i

(V]

Fifty (50) feet between a well and a storm sewer main.

Two hundred (200) feet between a well and any sanitary sewer main, lift
station or a single-family residential fuel oil tank. A lesser separation
distance may be allowed for sanitary sewer mains where the sanitary sewer
main is constructed of water main materials and joints and pressure-tested in
place to meet current AWWA C600 specifications. In no case may the
separation distance between a well and a sanitary sewer main be less than 50
feet.

Four hundred (400) feet between a well and a septic system, tank, or drain
field, and receiving fewer than 8,000 gallons per day, or a cemetery or a
storm water drainage pond.

Six hundred (600) feet between a well and any gasoline or fuel oil storage
tank installation that has received written approval from the Wisconsin
Department of Commerce (hereafter Commerce) or its designated agent
under s. Comm 10.10, Wis. Adm. Code.

One thousand (1,000) feet between a well and land application of municipal,
commercial or industrial waste; industrial, commercial or municipal
wastewater, lagoons or storage structures; manure stacks or storage structure;
and septic tanks or soil absorption units receiving 8,000 gallons per day or
more.

Supp. 04-10



6. Twelve hundred (1,200) feet between a well and any solid waste storage,

transportation, transfer, incineration, air curtain destructor, processing, one-
time disposal or small demolition facility; sanitary landfill; coal storage area;
gasoline or fuel oil storage tanks that have not received written approval
from Commerce or its designated agent under s. Comm 10.10, Wis. Adm.
Code; bulk fuel storage facilities and pesticide handling or storage facilities.

(d) REQUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING FACILITIES

l.

Upon request by the Village, existing facilities must provide copies of
federal, state, and local facility operation approvals or certificate and
ongoing environmental monitoring results to the Village.

Existing facilities shall provide additional environmental or safety
structures/monitoring as deemed necessary the Village, which may include
but is not limited to stormwater runoff management and monitoring.

Existing facilities shall replace equipment or expand in a manner that
improves the environmental and safety technologies already in existence.
Existing facilities shall have the responsibility of devising and filing with the
Village a contingency plan satisfactory to the Village for the immediate
notification of Village officials in the event of an emergency.

(¢) EXEMPTIONS AND WAIVERS

1.

2.

Individuals and/or facilities may request the Village, in writing, to permit
additional land uses in the District.

All requests shall be in writing and may require an environmental assessment
report prepared by a licensed environmental engineer. Said report shall be
forwarded to the Village and/or designee(s) for recommendation and final
decision by the Board.

The individual/facility shall reimburse the Village for all consultant fees
associated with this review at the invoiced amount plus administrative costs.
Any exemptions granted shall be conditional and may include required
environmental and safety monitoring consistent with local, state and federal
requirements, and/or bonds and/or securities satisfactory to the Village.

(4) ENFORCEMENT
(a) In the event that an individual and/or facility causes the release of any

contaminants that endanger the DISTRICT, the individual and/or facility causing
said release shall immediately stop the release and clean up the release to the

satisfaction of the Village.
(b) The individual/facility shall be responsible for all costs of clean-up, including the

following:

l.

2.

3.
4.

Village consultant fees at the invoice amount plus administrative costs for
oversight, review, and documentation.

The cost of Village employees’ time associated in any way with clean-up
based on the hourly rate paid by the employee multiplied by a factor
determined by the Village to represent the Village's cost for expenses,
benefits, insurance, sick leave holidays, overtime, vacation and similar
benefits.

The cost of Village equipment employed.
The cost of mileage reimbursed to Village employees attributed to the clean-

up.

(¢) Following any such discharge the Village may require additional test monitoring

and/or bonds/securities.
(d) Enforcement shall be provided pursuant to section 13-1-154 of the Zoning

Ordinance.

Supp. 04-10



Assuming 1.0% Rate Increase

Size:
5/8-3/4"
1-inch
1-1/4"
1-1/2"
2-inch
3-inch
4-inch
TOTALS

# of Meters

426
21

AN~

459

Qtrly Swewer Maint. Fee

Volume
23,530,420 gal.

Examples:

Customer

Classification
Average
Residential
Large
Residential
Commercial
Public Authority
Industrial

Meter Size

5/8-3/4"

5/8-3/4"
1||
1-1/72"
2||

Current
Rate
$ 33.79
$ 38.61
$ 43.45
$ 48.27
$ 57.92
$ 86.87
$

Current
Rate
$ 1250

Current
Rate
$ 510

Gallons
12,000

18,000
150,000
225,000
450,000

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$

& H NP &P «

Yield
57,578.16
3,243.24
173.80
193.08
1,621.76
694.96
482.64

63,087.64

Yield
22,950.00

Yield
120,005.14

Existing
Qtrly. Rate

107.49

138.09
820.95
1,208.27
2,365.42

Recomm endection

New Rate
33.79
38.61
43.45
48.27
57.92
86.87

120.66

h P P hH P PP

New Rate
$ 12.50

New Rate
$ 515

With 1%
Incr. Qtrly.
Rate

$ 108.09

$ 138.99
$ 823.61
$ 1,219.52
$ 2,387.92

Yield Difference
$ 5757816 $ -
$ 324324 3 =
$ 173.80 3 -
$ 193.08 $ &
$ 162176 3 =
$ 69496 $ E:
$ 48264 $ =
$ 6398764 % g
Yield Difference
$ 22,950.00 $ E
Yield
$ 12118166 $ 117652
Net Yield $ 1,176.52
CusStomer
Annual
Difference difference
$ 060 % 2.40
$ 090 $ 3.60
$ 266 $ 10.64
$ 1125 §$ 45.00
$ 2250 $ 90.00

S:\Water Sewer\Sewer Rates\2022 Sewer Rate Review.xls



Assuming 2.0% Rate Increase

5/8-3/4"
1-inch
1-1/4"
1-1/2"
2-inch
3-inch
4-inch
TOTALS

Qtrly Swewer Maint. Fee

Volume
23,530,420 gal.

Examples:

Customer

Classification
Average
Residential
Large
Residential
Commercial
Public Authority
Industrial

# of Meters

Current
Rate

4

426
21

ANIm N~ =

Meter Size

5/8-3/4"

5/8-3/4"
1"
1-1/2"
2"

9

$ 33.79
$ 38.61
$ 43.45
$ 4827
$ 57.92
$ 86.87
$

Current
Rate
$ 510

Gallons
12,000

18,000
150,000
225,000
450,000

Yield
$ 57,578.16
$ 324324
$ 17380
$ 19308
$ 162176
$ 69496
$ 48264
$

63,987.64

Yield
$ 22,950.00

Yield
$ 120,005.14

Existing
Qtrly. Rate

$ 107.49

138.09
820.95
1,208.27
2,365.42

P AP PR P

New Rate
$ 33.79
$ 38.61
$ 4345
$ 4827
$ 57.92
$ 86.87
$ 120.66

New Rate
$ 12.50

New Rate
$ 5.20

With 1%
Incr. Qtrly.
Rate

$ 108.69

$ 139.89
$ 83111
$ 1,230.77
$ 2,410.42

Yield Difference
$ 57,578.16 $ -
$ 324324 % -
3 173.80 % -
$ 193.08 $ -
$ 162176 % -
$ 69496 & -
$ 48264 3% -
$ 6398764 % -

Yield Difference
$ 2295000 % -

Yield
$ 122,358.18 $ 2,353.04
Net Yield $ 2,353.04

Annual
Difference difference
$ 120 $ 4.80
$ 180 $ 7.20
$ 10.16 $ 40.64
$ 2250 $ 90.00
$ 4500 $ 180.00

S:\Water Sewer\Sewer Rates\2022 Sewer Rate Review.xls



Assuming 3.0% Rate Increase

5/8-3/4"
1-inch
1-1/4"
1-1/72"
2-inch
3-inch
4-inch
TOTALS

# of Meters

426
21

DNIm NN 2

459

Qtrly Swewer Maint. Fee

Volume
23,530,420 gal.

Examples:

Customer

Classification
Average
Residential
Large
Residential
Commercial
Public Authority
Industrial

Meter Size

5/8-3/4"

5/8-3/4"
1II
1-1/2"
2"

Current
Rate
$ 33.79
$ 38.61
$ 4345
$ 4827
$ 57.92
$ 86.87
$120.66

Current
Rate
$ 12.50

Current
Rate
$ 510

Gallons
12,000

18,000
150,000
225,000
450,000

Yield
57,578.16
$ 324324
$  173.80
$  193.08
$ 162176
$
$
$

«L

694.96
482.64

63,987.64

Yield
$ 22,950.00

Yield
$ 120,005.14

Existing
Qtrly. Rate

107.49

138.09
820.95
1,208.27
2,365.42

&P O P h 9

New Rate
$ 33.79
$ 38.61
$ 43.45
$ 48.27
$ 57.92
$ 86.87
$ 12066

New Rate
$ 12.50

New Rate
$ 525

With 1%
Incr. Qtrly.
Rate

$ 109.29

$ 14079
$ 838.61
$ 1,242.02
$ 2,432.92

Yield Difference
$ 5757816 $ -
$ 324324 % =
$ 17380 $ :
$ 193.08 $ -
$ 162176 $ -
$ 694.96 $ *
$ 48264 $ -
$ 6398764 3 ]
Yield Difference
$ 2295000 $ -
Yield
$ 123,534.71 $ 3,529.56
Net Yield $ 3,529.56
Crsrn e
Annual
Difference difference
$ 180 $ 7.20
$ 270 $ 10.80
$ 1766 $ 70.64
$ 33.75 % 135.00
$ 67.50 $ 270.00

S:\Water Sewer\Sewer Rates\2022 Sewer Rate Review.xls



Lynn Niggemann

From: Lauren Stegeman <lauren.stegeman@ixom.com>
Sent: Tuesday, August 30, 2022 10:06 AM

To: Rand Bates

Cc: ‘Lynn Niggemann'

Subject: RE: Motor

Good Mormning,

Thanks for the information regarding this location, my apologies I wasn’t aware of the issues with this particular machine.
I did make Mike Christensen-Regional Manager, aware of your frustrations with this machine. I ordered a motor for you.
I’ll send you the tracking information once its sent out.

Have a great day! I’ll be in touch soon.

Kind Regards,
Lauren E. Stegeman
Sales & Service Representative

IXOIM _/AMEDORA MIEX

IXOM Watercare, Inc.

3225 HWY 22 Dickinson, ND 58601

Office: (866) 437-8076 | Direct: 701-590-7207
lauren.stegeman@ixom.com | www.ixomwatercare.com

Subscribe here for periodic email updates & information including videos, case studies, and other valuable content from Ixom
Watercare

From: Rand Bates <colfaxdpw@colfaxdpw.com>

Sent: Tuesday, August 30, 2022 5:59 AM

To: Lauren Stegeman <lauren.stegeman@ixom.com>

Cc: 'Lynn Niggemann' <clerktreasurer@villageofcolfaxwi.org>
Subject: Motor

Caution: This is an external email. Stop and think before responding, clicking on links or opening attachments.

Lauren,
Thank you for the follow up on the motor, but | don’t need a quote | need the motor this machine has been nothing but
a problem for us since we installed it. If you look at the track record on this you will see how much trouble we have had

with this machine.

We we’re told there is a ten year warranty on this motor and we have not had this machine for ten years and | think this
is the third or fourth motor along with about 12 motor controliers and maybe 2 control boxes that we have changed.

I have phosphorous limits to meet and can’t meet them without this machine mixing and have told your company
before when | order a part please send it right away so we don’t waste a day of shipping because of a quote.



SERVICE & PARTS QUOTATION
Ixom Watercare | North Dakota Offices
3225 Hwy 22, Dickinson, ND 58601

W A T E R C A R E www ixomwatercare.com » 866-437-8076

Date
Attention: Randy Bates August 29, 2022
Quote Number
Customer: Colfax, Village of COL44-22548-A
Acceptance Deadline
Location(s): Colfax WWTP October 28, 2022

Bill To: PO Box 417
603 Main Street
Colfax, Wl 54730

Service Description
This is a parts quotation only. No service included.

Service Subtotal:l $0.00

*Combined Safety / Security prerequisites requiring over one hour of Crew time onsite will be added at a rate of $600 / hour.
*Any additional fees associated with the above prerequisites will be billed out at cost.
*Should above prerequisites exist, detailed information must be submitted before scheduling can occur.

Qty. Part Num Parts Description Cost / Unit Subtotal
20504500 |Motor: Brushless, 14", with Bolts/Washers $4,833.26 $4,833.26
Parts Subtotal: $4,833.26

Quote may be amended should fewer or additional replacement parts be needed.

Shipping: $168.00
Taxes: See Below
Quote Total: $5,001.26

o Verbal acceptance is needed to ship parts and / or perform service,

o To accept this Quote, please fill out below information and either: a) Fax to B66-355-7583, b) Mail to Ixom Watercare Inc. using address at
top of page, or ¢) Scan and emall to customerservice@Iixom.com.

o This is not an invoice. An invoice will be sent once this quote is accepted, work completed, and/or parts delivered.

» Applicable Sales Taxes: This quote is pre-sales tax. If sales taxes apply, they will be added in at time of involce.

Authorized Signature Date POR (if appiicable)

©2021 IXOM | www ixnmwatareare com | B8R - 437 - RO7A | watercara@ixom com



SERVICE & PARTS QUOTATION
Ixom Watercare | North Dakota Offices
3225 Hwy 22, Dickinson, ND 58601
www ixomwatercare.com e 866-437-8076

IXOMI

WATERCARE

General Terms & Conditions of Sale

These terms ond 3 . "Terms and Canditionz”) govern all sales of prods anid services {colk ~Gaods”) agreed ta be suppiied by XOM
wmmalncr‘&m!uuwp-mnmvmwnuqu\mmkmdlw\n\okufhnngmmwlhthnsdﬂ'['&lm TthmulﬂCantﬁﬂaBmimnpqrmdhnuny
clducﬂ-rmngnmmxcnnd-m\dlngbummthesmwﬂthtmwr(-ﬂmﬂngmumwumarlﬂtunldfrumphdbymBuyu)mwdmuwmnmnor
invoicm or any other documen to which they are hed (ndvidualhy 'Order”). All pun bry Buyer are expreasly limited and condRtioned upan occepeance of the
Tmananndhmsudwnhommwmmdmmmm.WsmdemnMsBuyu’smtnﬂufmund&mﬂﬂmmdwmum
affered by Selies. Setler objects ta and rejects ony provisian adkditional to ar differant from the Tesms ond Conditions thot may appear n Buyer's purchase order, odmowledgement,
cnfirmation, writing or in ony prior or later comymumication from Buyer to Seiler, uniess Seller expressly agrees ta such pravision in a written amendment signed by Sefler. An Order
together with thase Terms and Conditions ara hersin referred ta as “Contract”,

1. Prices; Taxes; Poyrnent Terms; Default: (a) Prices for Goods and any
to such prices sholl he detesrined in gocordance with
Seller’s final pricng letter or offer farming port of the Contract which has
been acoopted by Buyes (“Price”).
(b) Prices do nat Inchude any sales, use, excize, privilege, ar other taces or
cssessmants imposed on the Goods sold hereunder and unless Buyer
provides proof of exemnption sotisfoctory to Setler, such may be added to
the prics of the Goods.
() Subject to Section 1(e) and unless ctherwiss agreed in writing,
poyment terms are ret 30 doys fram dote of invalcs. Poyments not
received whan dus sholl incur sarvice charges at the rte of 1.5% pec
month (18% per annum) until paid, compounded on o doily bosis.
{d) I any of tha events st out in this Section 1{d) {1} through (v} below
occwr, Saliar reaarves tha right, among other remedies, to delay or
suzpand further or require full or partiol cosh payment in
advance untll oll suma due hove been pald. Buyer sholl ba lable for all
oy and expenses incurred by Seller in coliscting any overdus amounts,
inchiding without Emitots J faes.

{1} Buyer defoults in any payments or is unoble ar states that
It is unahle to poy its dabts 03 and when they foll due.

(@) Buysr ity an ace of b fiezo Y
petitian in bankruptcy or has fled ogainst & an invaluntary
petition in banlouptcy or hos a tnustes, rnuivw

reject that portion of the Goods that foil to comply by praviding Seller
with a notice made in writing and received by the Selier within 30 days of
delivery of the Goods. Faliure to timaly delver writtan notice of any wch
claim or rejection of the Goods within the warranty period specified in
thiz douea 4 chall be desmad an absolute and unconditional watver of
such :hinfuhngwahmugcoru@nolq.ﬂ such Goods and ol
ckaims related theve to and zhall of
such Goods, Mammmmmmmmmm
shafl have than been discovered or of whethar use or oppcation of the
Goads shall have then takan ploce.

5. Retums: Retumed Gaods shall not be ocanpted uniess Buyer obtains
priar writtan approval and transpartation instructions from Seller. All
Goods returned to Seller must be in full camaoinars or cases, unopened
and in the some as when i a retum is oppe by
Saller, Guods may be returned for exchange or credit only. Sefiar chall give
no cash refunds for returned Goods. Approved retumed Goods are
subject to a restocking chorge of 15% of the invoiced value of such Goods
ond Buyer shall pay all tronzpertation charges.

&, Limited Warmanty: =) Sibject 1o Section 4(e) ond Sectian 7 belew,
Salber worronts title snd thot the Goods sholl conform to Seller’s stondord

, manager,
administrotor oppainted in rup-:wf&w-rs -ﬂmtaaw
port of Buyer's propasty or amsets.

(@) Buyer panses a reschition for its winding up or enters into
qnd:mnwhnsmwfufﬁr&igupmedw

(N)Mwmmmqrmhvmbmdkdn:
aredRars.

{v) Buyer experinncas any analogous evere having

substamially smilar effect to any of the events listed abave.
{e)} Notwithatonding Sectian 1(a), Seller may ot any tima in its sole and
unfuttared dbawtian and without being under anw duty or abligation to
casign reasons, review, alter or terminate Buyer's credit fimit or paymaent
tems without notics, Without Gmiting the generality af the faregoing,
the dacition of Seller shal ba final and Seller accapts no Fabifity or

far any loss, arising, incurred by Buyer due to the
operotion of this condition.
2. s.wab.n.ryu-pusu va Purchasa: (q) Uniess ogreed
in weiting, al are FCA. S-Iht’:u'ltsnb-

frame of the Order but SeHtar zhall nat ba lkabla for oy follure or deloy in
dalivery for ony reason. Buyer I tespansible for dapasing of oll non-
returnable containers and shipping materials.

(b) Purchoae arders issued by Buper and ploced with Seller are irvocable
and Buyer s cortractuolly obiiged to toke delivary and pay for ol Goods
ordered ond supplied or made ovailobia by Seller pursuont to such
purchase order. If Sefler does net recsive Farwarding instructions
ayfficlent to enabie it to dispatch Goods within fourtean (14) days after
notice to Buyer thot auch Goods are ready, Buyer sholl be deerned to
have taken dellvery fram auch date and shail be obliged to pay
reasonatie starage charges poyohle on demand. Unless otherwise agreed
upan by the parties in writing. if Buyer doss not ocoapt delvery or collect
Gaode fram Seller when mode avallable at tha agreed delivery point in
u::mwihtho&mmcl Buyer olso will pay Seller for SLC-7548174-
2 storage d Selluforcmy or
futile delivery costs incurmed by Sele

3. Thie; Rigk of Loss or Bomage: Title to and risk of loss of the Goods shall
pass to Buyer upon defivery to thw corrier at point of shipment.

4. Inspection; Accaptance: Buyer shall promptly examine the Goods far
dwmg:ushmogtorfmlmufdu&odnocﬂnplymhh
Seller’s or the nor
r:hmndlndnCwm All daitrs for domoge or shartoge of Goods
shall be deemed waived unless made in writing and recefved by Seller
within 30 days of dellvery of the Goods. If Buyer finds that any of the
Gends do not camply with the specifications, Buyer may, ot its aptian,

©2021 IXOM | www ixnmwatarcare com | 866 - 437 - RN7A | waternara@ixom com

sales n effect at ths tima of monufoctse or the:
sp.:ﬂhmouugudwthnpaduhwrlutgondmmulmdw
d in the Order. Ex d by

HUMmhwpwmdmhMmy,#wﬁtha‘h
the Cantract, be subject only to waranties of Seller’s wandars and Seller
herebtry asigns to Buyer all such rights in such vendar’s warranties and

odvice or recommendations by Seller with respact to the Goads or the use
of the Goods ore provided in good foith based on tests or exparience
beligved to be refiakle, but such advice or recommendotions are not
warmanved. Buyar agress that it & resporafble for ersuring that Goods
Mcnmﬂywﬂnhl s in S &{a) are fit and suftable for ks
plorz and
(dTuhmnmp-mﬁtdbym Saller mokes no other
representation ar worranty of amy kind, and hareby expressly discloims ol
ather representotions or worranties, express, implied, statutary or arising
ﬁmumdmlmuwdmnndnwm nchuding
without Hrvs any Y @5 to
mhuwnmlurmme.unnymh-nmummmth.
goods, whather used alons or in combination with arvy cther goods,
substonces pracesses of materiols or sarvices,
(d) In tha avent the exclusion of same o all of :uch wararnties unde
sextion &(c) for cartain goads subject 2a this contract woukd be illegol,
vy additional warranty would be mited to the warranty required by
appicable kaw and to the extent permittad by such low, would be subject
1o section 6(e) and sectian 7, and & ioned upon use in
with label directions under normal conditions reasonably foresesabla to
ulwwhhwamhgthmkdwmmmuddrm:,
under abi under -
foreseachis to seller.
(@} Safir's scle ability and Buyer's sole ramedy for breach of warrarty
are specifically Bmited to the repalr of the goods (ar re-perfarmancs of
services when applicoble) or the cost thereof where Saller fails to perform
such repair Rate by a breach of and ruch Gability and
remedy re exclisive of all other liabllities ond remedies. Should these
ramadies be found inadaquata ar to hove folled of their essantial purpose
for ony recnn whatscever, Buyer agrees that the retum of the cmount
paid by buyer to saller for the purchose of the goods which fail to
conform with the warmonties set forth in section 5.7 shall be considered o
falf ond odequate remedy and pravent the remedies from falling of their
essential purpase.

7_Limitation of Uakilliry: (o) The Babilly of Seller and s afffiates to
Buyer under and in connectian with the Contrace is imited to the price
aliocable to the Goods giving rise to the claim and in no event sholl the
currudative Eability of Seller howsosver anmg, m:d\orundormly
controce, todt, strice Dabity, @ defanze or any
other couwse of ion of couses -, exceed the total




SERVICE & PARTS QUOTATION
Ixom Watercare | North Dakota Offices
3225 Hwy 22, Dickinson, ND 58601
www ixomwatercare com o 866-437-8076

IXOMI

WATERCARE

payments recaived from Buyer under the Caneract in connection with the

Goods.

{b) To the extent permirtad by low and not withstanding any provasion to

tmmnthm S-hmllnmbclmfwspndd -ﬂnct
withaut

hssdprdks.Lmofb\nhﬂmes. lcunfmpltnl.fulun!nmdﬂn
emﬂ-dpmﬂt-wm overhead ants, loss by reasan of service

panse of o, lens of goadvll, loss of
n;nnunm,rnsufvdunuwhdlmuulpwp«ty damages or
o other ar to other third

poxties, mmmm whether arising under warranty, comtroct;
or other tort, strict
Eability, breach of statute, indemndficotion, ar ony other couse or

of couses, incl arty thaaries of Kab#ity
amising from a duty of core by cperction of kaw ar otharwhe.

8. Sofe Staroga Handiing & Uss; peion of Rk

Buyer ackmowledges that & is fomifiar with the risks otsodiated with the
storoge, hr.mﬁlgﬂnd uza of Goods and ony waste resulting therefram.
g tothe contrary set forth in
thtCavtruck Buyucnwnamzm\dwwumsﬂvdshnllmmﬂ
that it ond its employwas, og-u,mriusm\dmnmmhnﬁr
with and odhere to all y and and safety
medaures to safely store, hund.a'md’nﬁmt (i) ® ond ks
arnpioyess, ogents, carriers ond customers shall comply with ol
opplicable Laws, including without imitation, emvmnmentd kews and
regulctions pertaining to the staroge, handling and e of Goods; (8)
shail obtain and camply with al required permits and Boares, Sallar
tokes na responsility for, and Buyer assurmas alf risks oxzociated with
wuste charocterization, reguigtory status and chermnical composition of
any product, pracess, material, westa ar substanca inko which the Goods.
are eorporated or applied. Without Emiting the foregoing, Buyer thall
further ensure that oll storage tarks, vesseks, and pipes, hoses and volves
ond ather componerts used by Suyer or its employess, ogents, carmiars
and custormars to stare, handla and tronsfer Boods which are bulk
chermicak ara property insalled and mainteined ta prevent injury, death
or et of containment during storaga, handling and transfer of such
Goods. If Buysr resslls or distributes Goods to third parties, Buyer
mmwdﬂkyhrmmthﬂkpwﬂz&luhd instructions.
10 such third parties cte staruge, d use of thase:
Goods and any Storage terms or packaging in which such Gaods are
stored. To the marimum extent ofowed by low, Buyer aasurnes oll rdes
«and liabifty whatsoever for all Injuties, nsses and damages to persons ar
property ar otherwise and shall inderwify, defend and hold harmiess
Saller and Seller’s employees and agents ogainst all daims, domoges,
lasses, costs, lioblikies, ond ather capenses (including investigation and
attameyr’ fees) that Seler incurs or moy be cbhiigated to pay os o result
of (i) Buy-r’:,incmplopn ogenty’, comrrn’ o clstamers” hmdltng_

storagu, we
disperml, m.ummuwuwMMum
alone or i b with other pr

wastes, () Buyer's, its amployess’, agentt’, carriars’ ar customers”
vichgtion or otieged viclation of any Low, or (I1) Buyar's breach of ony of
its obfigations set forth harein.

9. Forea Majsure: Shipmants or deliveries may be totally or partially
wsper&dwddaydbySduMgunypunﬂnmhch!h.Seh’mcy

ﬁ or from delvery, ar supply through
outside Seller’s le control whom such
manufuctum, dalbvery or supply ls

such droumstancas. Orwmbqws.lhr’smnﬂ-mvd
shall include, without kmitotion, strikes, lockouts or ather labor dffsculty;
acts of carrlers; acts of God; oces of chvl or millory autharities; aces o
omissions of Buyer; war; riot; fire; explosion; octs of terrarism; fioad; any
nobiity to abtoin or lnck af any necessory or adequate materlals, inputs,
fuel, pawer, labar, equipment, contanars, focilities or serdces on usual
terma; povar of water shortoge; a:ﬁhm:uhnddmrswfdur-nf
plont o Y or opp dalays, at sea
POrts or transport depats or softwore, MM!ormmmm
network; changes n applicable Lows; or any ather event, whether or nat
.mmmdmmmm'dds*:mm
L J or of the Goads or
dnmndwmmnmupmmmm
tronspartation ar shipment of the Goods depends. Seller shall nat incur
any Bability to Buyer i respect of such suspengion.

©2021 IXOM | www ixomwatarcare com | 86 - 437 - RO7A | watercara@ixom com

10. unlhntdﬁnp-w-suukthamhmdummomdm

in the ds and d in such
Guods, and the rights attached to that teliectudl Property. Nothing
herein granes ta Buyer any right, title or itmrest in or to any of the
Intnliectual Property in the Gaods. Buyer shall nat claim to have acquired
any right, title or intarest to the intetectual Property in the Gands by
virtue of purchasing Goods soid hareundar. Buyer shall nat decanstruct,
mm;ﬁummﬁ!hﬁoﬁshuﬂymfalhpﬂw

of or g the chermical comp of the Goods. As
used hersin, "Inteloctual Property” means arry Intdscmolurlndtmd
property right anywhers in the warkd incl without ary
patart, patant ion, utllity model, i i

n manuols, and g L = d deaign
ond ather design rights, ungx d sscrets ond i i

infam‘xlan mwmh«mmmmmmmmm

ond other

uchnlcﬂlundnhrrmd&nu Buy-d\cllno!rul dlnrhm
ar supply the Goods to any third party for any raason without Selier's
priar written consent.

n.c Entirn Agr Change to Terms &
Canditlana: {a) Al hhrrmlﬁmlhut Buyar acquires fram Seller heceundar,
directy or indirectly. and all nformation thot arses out of the sole of the

business pkana, ifarmation relating to Seler’s opevations, now-howr,
and other,
S-hr—fwnkhdlnfmﬁnnﬂdhdums-hﬁw
Informatian™. Buysr shal (o)
strictest confidance, [h)rud'mhu‘ltoolhu}, {c) usrlmﬂ[fu
purpases of this Agreernant and (d) upan Seller’s request, either promptly
dellver to Seller all such Propriatary infarmation that s in written,
electronic ar ather fasrm, inchuding capies ond summaries, ar, at Seller’s
aption, destroy such Propristory informatian and provide Buyer

ion of such on. The under this Section shall
survive the expirgtion or termination of tha Costract.
(b) The Controct canstitutes the sntire agresmant of the parties with
mw:mwmwmwmwwm-ﬂm
all prlor and other or ctherers
Wunwnm:mmthowmdmmymm
Frited ta, those relating to tha pesfarmance of Goods or resufts that
ought to be expacted from using the Goads.

12. Governing Law: Tha rights and duties of the porthes ond any dispute
regarding the sabe of Gaocls covered hareby shall be resolved according to
tha krws of the state of Colorado, without regard to s conflicts of law
pravisions. Buyer hateby agrees to submit to the non-exducive jurfediction
of the courts in tha state of Colaradn. Any cantroversy or claim orising
out of ar relating to the sale of Goods or the declings between the parties
shdb-wnhdmdybymhthmr C(hrudubyu:hga
to the L
Comnerciol Arbitration rutas then in affect, and judgment upan
award shall be entered in any court having jurisdiction thareof. TT\-
prevailing party in any arbitration proceeding shall be ertitied to recover
fes remonable attamays’ fwes and casts, in addition to any other relief
obtained.

13. Waiver: No follum ta exercize nor ony delay or omistlon in enercising
anvy right, power or remady by Seller operotes as or constitutes a waiver.
A single ar partial exercise by Sellar of ony right, power or remedy does
not preciuda any other or further erarcise by i of that or any other right,
power of remedy. A walver i not vaiid or binding an Selles uniess made In
waiting. Mo falkira by Selfes to exerclee, nor any dalgy of amission by Seiler
in exercising any right, pawes, or remady nar any representation mode, ar
eonduct camied out by Seller under the Cantroct o in connectian with
the supply of Goods ar any of them shall constitute of provida grounds.
for @ comman law ar equitchle estoppel.
14,5:\«\:0:. Hmypwdmme-rmsdeaﬂhuwhs

i any parson or invaiid, egal
orunshcmbh mwwslmdullsefuruspm'hhbemddwnm
such extent as may be nacessary to arure thot it & not invalid, Tlegal ar
unenforcaghie. if any provislon or part of it connot be 5o read down, the
provisan or part of it sholl be deesnad void and severablle and the
remaining provisiana of the Terms and Canditiana shall net in any woy be
affected or impaied.




Public Works Committee Meeting
August 18", 2022
6:00 p.m.

The Village of Colfax Public Works Committee met on August 18™ 2022 at 6:00 p.m. at the Village Hall, 613
Main Street, Colfax, Wl. Members Present were: Jody Albricht and Jen Rud, Chair. Excused: Davis. Others
present included: Director of Public Works and Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer Niggemann.

Review the Public Utilities Title 9 Ordinance/Review Sewer & Water Rates — The Committee reviewed the
Water & Sewer Regulations and Rates ordinances. In reviewing the ordinance and the 2021 year-end results,
the Committee felt that the Sewer Utility should increase the rates one percent to help soften any future
needs for rate increases. The average residence would potentially see about a $2/quarter increase in the
water bill with the rate going from $5.10 per 1,000 gallons to $5.15 per 1,000 gallons effective January 1, 2023
with the rate change on the April 2023 bill. The other discussion involved street openings when repairing
sewer laterals. Prior to 2018, the street opening fee was $1,000. A couple projects left the Village with a
balance to pay of $3,000 to $4,000. The Village modified the ordinance to have the property owners
responsible for the repair of the street when they have utility projects. This process has been very difficult to
keep track of due to timing that the patches need to settle before being asphalted. Between the Public Works
and Administration, it would be better to go back to a standard permit fee. Suggestion would be $2,500.

A motion was made by Albricht and seconded by Rud to recommend to the Village Board to increase the
sewer by volume rate to $5.15 per 1,000 gallons. A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor.
Motion carried.

A motion was made by Albricht and seconded by Rud to recommend to the Village Board to change the street
opening fee to $2,500. A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor. Motion carried.

Adjournment — A motion was made by Albricht and seconded by Rud to adjourn the meeting at 7:20 pm. All
members voted in favor. Meeting adjourned.

Jen Rud, Chairperson



Colfax Solid Waste & Recycling Committee Minutes —August 23", 2022

On August 23" 2022, the Solid Waste & Recycling Committee met 7:00 p.m. at the Colfax Community Fire
Department, 407 County Road M, Colfax, Wl. Members present: Dean Logslett-Town of Colfax, John Schaefer-
Town of Spring Brook, Justin Albricht-Town of Tainter, Tony Christopherson-Town of Elk Mound, Mark Dietsche-
Town of Grant, LeAnn Ralph-Town of Otter Creek, Terry Stamm-Village of Elk Mound and Jody Albricht-Village of
Colfax (Chair). Excused: Ray Glaser-Town of Wilson. Others present included Village of Colfax Administrator-Clerk-
Treasurer Niggemann.

Consideration ltems

2021 Department of Natural Resources Review/Things we need to improve on-Compliance checks for multi-
family units and businesses

Niggemann explained that in the conversation with the DNR after the annual report was submitted, the agent
indicated that there needs to be compliance inspections. This would refer to verifying that multi-family units and
businesses are being furnished with recycling containers that are collected by a hauler. Any non-compliance
issues discovered during inspections need to be noted and any corrective actions or notices given out should be
recorded.

2023 Printed materials to be discussed

Fee Schedule Review Updates and consider any other changes

The committee indicated that Stamm and Niggemann can work with the site workers in making modifications to
the fee schedule

Permits/Envelopes

Ralph will work with Carlton Dewitt for permits and envelopes as previously ordered in previous years. (Colors
decided after the meeting are Blue-Colfax and Orange-Elk Mound).

Quarterly Permit Fees

There was a request to allow for quarterly fees for the permit. The Committee discussed and no action taken so
the permit fees remain at $200 for annual non-resident fee and $100 after June 30" for a non-resident fee.
Hours of Operation

Stamm and Niggemann had the attendants conduct a survey of site use from 5 pm to 6 pm. The usage at both
sites is 30 to 40 cars. The usage indicates that the site should remain open until 6 pm. The attendants indicated
that they think it would be helpful to add one hour of operation on Wednesdays, 1 pm to 6 pm and keep
Saturdays open from 8 am to 3 pm. A motion was made by Christopherson- Town of Elk Mound and seconded by
Albricht-Town of Tainter to approve the change of hours for Wednesday to 1 pm to 6 pm and keep Saturday the
same. A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor. Motion carried.

Educational Material

During the phone call with the DNR, they said that the Responsible Unit can order the educational materials from
the website at no cost.

Site Items — Clear Bag Consideration — Some of the attendants have seen clear bags from other collections sites.
They felt these bags would help minimize people from throwing the recycling into the trash if the bags are
required. The Committee discussed the cost and the number of bags that would be needed to accomplish this
task with nine municipalities. No action was taken, so there will not be a clear bag requirement.

Clean Sweep 2023

After submitting the application for a clean sweep grant, the Village will hopefully be notified of the award notice
in the next couple months. If awarded the grant, the RU would work with the state contracted vendor to organize
the event for the spring of 2023. The Committee would like Advance Disposal to visit the committee to provide
knowledge to help make necessary decisions about the event.



Uniform Allowance

The attendants have indicated that Dunn County provided a $125 annual Uniform Allowance. They were inquiring
if that is something the committee would consider. A motion was made by Ralph-Town of Otter Creek and
seconded by Schaefer-Town of Spring Brook to approve a $125 annual uniform reimbursement and the RU will
also provide the coat. A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor. Motion carried.

Pay rate for Collection Site Workers

A motion was made by Albricht-Town of Tainter and seconded by Dietsche-Town of Grant effective January 1,
2023 the lead pay will be $17/hour and the attendant pay will be $16/hour. A voice vote was taken with eight
ayes, zero nays and Stamm abstained. Motion carried.

2023 Contracts

Current Contracts — A motion was made by Dietsche-Town of Grant to maintain the current contracts unless there
is some large modification to any of the agreements. A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor.
Motion carried.

Brush Annual Disposal- Elk Mound Site would work with the same company as 2021 to grind the brush pile.
Jenson Farms takes the pile to be composted occasionally, during the process of composting the grindings should
be in smaller forms. The estimated cost to have the pile ground is $6,825 based on the estimated size. A motion
was made by Christopherson-Town of Elk Mound and seconded by Schaefer-Town of Spring Brook to go with
Sylvester Custom Grinding, Inc. A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor. Motion carried. The
next available date is 9/15/2022.

Any Other Discussion Items

The outhouses at the sites, Elk Mound needs theirs pumped. Colfax site will verify. A motion was made by
Stamm-Village of Elk Mound and seconded by Ralph-Town of Otter Creek to move forward with contacting a
vendor to pump the outhouses as needed. A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor. Motion
carried.

Niggemann mentioned that if the sites had phones with data, one of the attendants could email the container
switch outs before they leave each business day. A motion was made by Albricht-Town of Tainter and seconded
by Stamm-Village of Etk Mound to allow Niggemann to work with the phone vendor to get new phones for the
collection sites with data. A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor. Motion carried

A motion was made by Albricht-Town of Tainter and seconded by Logslett-Town of Colfax to surplus the extra ten
(10) container boxes. A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor. Motion carried.

A motion was made by Christopherson-Town of Elk Mound and seconded by Ralph-Town of Otter Creek to
advertise on Facebook that there will no longer be a charge for batteries effective immediately. A voice vote was
taken with all members voting in favor. Motion carried.

Statement of Bills — April 26, 2022 to August 22", 2022. A motion was made by Dietsche-Town of Grant and
seconded by Christopherson-Town of Elk Mound to approve the bills for April 26™, 2022 to August 22", 2022.
A voice vote was taken with all members voting in favor. Motion carried.

Financial/Budget Documents/Per Capita Discussions- A motion was made by Ralph-Town of Otter Creek and
seconded by Albricht-Town of Tainter to keep the per capita fees the same as prior year, $28.06 for the Colfax
Group and $40.42 for the Elk Mound Group. Voting For: Logslett-Town of Colfax, Dietsche-Town of Grant, Ralph-
Town of Otter Creek, Schaefer-Town of Spring Brook, Albricht-Town of Tainter, Christopherson-Town of Elk
Mound, Albricht-Village of Colfax, Stamm-Village of Elk Mound. Voting Against: none. Motion carried.

August 231, 2021 Solid Waste & Recycling Committee Meeting Page 2



Clean Sweep — The Committee discussed that the RU should apply for the clean sweep grant for 2023 and
tentatively plan for a fall 2023 clean sweep. This grant is through DACAP with a deadline of May 27", 2022.

Minutes — April 26", 2022 — A motion was made by Stamm-Village of Elk Mound and seconded by Ralph-Town of
Otter Creek to approve the April 26™, 2022 meeting minutes with corrections to the parking lot section. A voice
vote was taken with all members voting in favor. Motion carried.

Next meeting date — A motion was made by Stamm-Village of Elk Mound and seconded by Raiph-Town of Otter
Creek to hold the next meeting on Tuesday, Aprit 25", 2022 at 7 p.m. at the Fire Hall. A voice vote was taken with
all members voting in favor. Motion carried

Adjourn — A motion was made by Albricht-Town of Tainter and seconded by Schaefer-Town of Spring Brook to
adjourn the meeting at 9:11 p.m. A voice votes was taken with all members voting in favor. Motion carried.

Jody Albricht, Chair
Attest: Lynn Niggemann, Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer

August 231, 2021 Solid Waste & Recycling Committee Meeting Page 3



FBER
Inseections

2921 Ingalls Road
Menomonie, Wi 54751

Mobile: 715-556-0066

FAX: 715-231-2447
www.weberinspections.com
inspector@weberinspections.com

Village of Colfax

Date Customer
] 8/12/2022 Anderson
(1] 8/12/2022 Anderson
(] 8/15/2022 Livingston
] 8/19/2022 Homes By Croix Creek
[] 8/22/2022 Denmark Dairy
] 8/31/2022 Peterson

Activity Report

Service

Final Inspection/Occupancy
Rough Construction

Permit Issued

Final Inspection/Occupancy
Permit Issued

Permit Issued

Any Permit with a check mark can be viewed on the state website

August
Pass/Fail Project

Passed
Passed

Remodel
Passed

Remodel

Addition



‘Weber Inspections

2921 Ingalls Road, Menomonie, WI 54751 715-556-0066

Building Permit

Village of Colfax

Date 8/31/2022

Issued to: Thomas L. Peterson
Address: 510 Cedar St., Colfax Wis. 54730
Project: 9' x 18' 1 story house addition.
Permits Issued: Inspections Needed:

X Yes No

Cost Phase Rough Final

Construction $90.00 Footing X
HVAC Foundation
Electrical $25.00 Basement Drain Tiles
Plumbing Construction X X
Erosion Control Plumbing
Total S 115.00 Heat/Vent/AC

Electrical X X

Paid Insulation
Occupancy




‘Weber Inspections

2921 Ingalls Road, Menomonie, Wi 54751  715-556-0066

Building Permit

Village of Colfax

Date 8/15/22
Issued to: Samuel Livingston / American Waterworks.
Address: 503 West St. , Colfax Wis. 54730
Project: 3- egress windows & a Waterguard system.
Permits Issued: Inspections Needed:

X Yes No

Cost Phase Rough Final

Construction $90.00 Footing
HVAC Foundation
Electrical Basement Drain Tiles
Plumbing Construction X
Erosion Control Plumbing
Total S 90.00 Heat/Vent/AC

Electrical

Cheg. Insulation
Occupancy




‘Weber Inspections

2921 Ingalls Road, Menomonie, Wi 54751 715-556-0066

Building Permit

Village of Colfax

Date 8/22/22
Issued to: Denmark Dairy
Address: 309 Main St., Colfax Wis. 54730
PI’OjECtZ General house remodel - Const. , Electric, HVAC, & Plbg. Entryway - house & garage
main roofs.
Permits Issued: Inspections Needed:
X Yes No
Cost Phase Rough Final
Construction $90.00 Footing
HVAC $40.00 Foundation
Electrical $25.00 Basement Drain Tiles
Plumbing $35.00 Construction X X
Erosion Control Plumbing X X
Total S 190.00 Heat/Vent/AC X X
Electrical X X
Chg. Insulation
Occupancy




Wisconsin Division Application No.
d Buildin;
of Safety and Buildings VILLAGE OF COLFAX D035 - /O,
UNIFORM BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION &
Wisconsin Stats. 101.63, 101.73 Parcel No.
1711122911163100013
PERMIT REQUESTED | O Constr. 0 HVAC O Electric O Plumbing [ Erosion Control Other: Sign
Owner’s Name Mailing Address: Tel.
225 VPP, LLC D.BA_VILLAGE POINTE MALL 101 S MAIN ST COLFAX W1 54730
Contractor’s Name: QCen OElec OBVAC OPlbg | Lic/Cert# Mailing Address Tel
_ | 2933 Mondovi Rd 715.379.0879
SignArt Co., Inc. 130 Eau Claire Wl 54701 FAX#
Contractor’s Name: (0Con OElec THVAC OPlbg | Lic/Cert# Mailing Address Tel
FAXH#
Contractor’s Name: OCon OElec OHVAC OPlbg | Lic/Cert# Mailing Address Tel.
FAX#
Contractor’s Name: OCon OFElec OHVAC OPlbg | Lic/Cert# Mailing Address Tel.
FAX#
PROJECT Lot area X
LOCATION Sy fi 14, 1/4, of Section ,T N,R E@W
Building Address . Subdivision Name Lot No. Block No.
£ 225 E Bremer Ave
Zoning District(s) Zoning Permit No. Setbacks: Front Rear Left Right
ft. f. ft. ft.
1. PROJECT 3. OCCUPANCY 6. ELECTRICAL 9. HVAC EQUIPMENT | 12. ENERGY SOURCE
O New O Repair 0 Single Family Entrance Panel O Forced Air Furnace Fuel Nat Gas | LP | Oil | Elec | Solid | Solar
O Alteration 0O Raze 0 Two Family Amps: U Radiant Basebd/ Panel | Space Hig 0 3] o] [l 0 [
0 Additon O Move 0O Garage 0 Underground O Heat Pump ‘Water Htg 9l 03 [n] ] ] [
0 Other: [ Other: O Overhead 0 Boiler [ Dwelling unit has 3 kilowatt or more in electric space
7. FOUNDATION | O Central Air Cond. hesting equipment capacity.
2. AREA INVOLVED 4. CONST. TYPE O Concrete O Other: 13. HEAT LOSS
Unfin. 0 Site-Built O Masonry
Bsmt SqFt | OMfd: OWIUDC O Treated Wood 10. SEWER BTU/HR Total Calculated
Living 0 U.S.HUD 0 Other: 0 Municipal Envelope and Infiltration Losses (“Maximum Allowable
Area SqFt | 5.STORIES 8. USE 0 Sanitary Permit No.: Heating Equipment Output” on Energy Worksheet;
0 1-Story O Seascnal "Total Building Heating Load" on WIScheck report)
Garage SqFt | 0 2-Story [J Permanent 11. WATER 14. EST. BUILDING COST
0 Other: 0 Other: 0 Municipal Utility
Deck SqFt. | O Plus Basement 3 Private On-Site Well 3

1 agree to comply with all applicable codes, statutcs, and ordinances and with the conditions of this permit; understand that the issuance of the permit creates no legal liability,
express or implied, on the state or municipality; and certify that all the above information is accurate. If I am an owner applying for an erosion control or construction permit,
Ihave read the cautionary statement regarding contractor financial responsibility on the reverse side of the last ply. T expressly grant the building inspector, or the inspector's
authorized agent, permission to enter the premises for which this permit is sought at all reasonable hours and for any proper purpose to inspect the work which is being done.

DATE SIGNED 07.29.2022

APPLICANT’S SIGNATURE _&/s2¢fzz. Wle @lhinsn

This permit is issued pursuant to the following conditions. Failure to comply may result in suspension or revecation of this

APPROVAL CONDITIONS permit or other penalty. 0 See attached for conditions of approval.
feco Siqp
=
Mumnicipality Number of Dwelling Location
I 7 1 1 1
FEES: PERMIT(S) ISSUED PERMIT ISSUED BY:
Plan Review s O Construction —
Tnspection $ O HVAC Neme(oacors ¢ L Hzpin e -
Wis. Permit Seal  § 0 Electrical -
Other $ O Plumbing Date S~ 3- 22— Tel. _7/S-562- ¢/ Y62
0 Erosion. Control
Total $ S0, 00 Cert No.

Distribution: [ Copy 1 - Isshing Jurisdiction [Copy 2 —Owner/Agent [Copy 3 - Inspector




Wisconsin Division
of Safety and Buildings

Wisconsin Stats. 101.63, 101.73

VILLAGE OF COLFAX

UNIFORM BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION

Application No.

2022~ (_3

Parcel No.

PERMIT REQUESTED | [JConstr. [JHVAC [JElectric [JPlumbing []Erosion Control Other:
Owngr’s Name i ailing Addre = ) Tel.
2 e (onzeler | JOSU R Diioticn s cyro | B c-smppeso
Contractor’s Name: [TCon [Flec [_HVAC [Plbg | Lic/Cert# “Mailing Address ' Tel.
FAX#
Contractor’s Name: [Fon [ Elec [HVAC [Pibg | Lic/Cert# Mailing Address Tel.
FAX#
Contractor’s Name: [ Ton ["Elec [HVAC [Plbg | Lic/Cert# Mailing Address Tel.
FAX#
Coniractor’s Name: [[JCon [Elec [HVAC [ Plbg | Lic/Cert# Mailing Address Tel.
FAX#
PROJECT Lot area .
LOCATION Sq. ft. _ 1/4, _ 1/4, of Section * T N,R E (01') w
Building Address Subdivision Name Lot No. Block No.
Zoning District(s) Zoning Permit No. Setbacks: Front Rear Left Right
ft. ft. ft. ft.
1. PROJECT 3. OCCUPANCY 6. ELECTRICAL 9. HVAC EQUIPMENT | 12. ENERGY SOURCE
gN ew [CRepair [ISingle Family Entrance Panel [CJForced Air Fumnace Fuel NatGas | LP i Oil | Elec | Solid | Solar
Alteration  [JRaze [OJTwo Family Amps: _ | ORadiant Basebd/ Panel | Space Hig [ s " z
OAddition OMove [JGarage [JUnderground [JHeat Pump Water Htg o 11 [ 1 #] 23
[ClOthgr: y [OOther: [CJOverherd [OBoiler [IDwelling unit has 3 kilowatt or more in electric space
S/ A M A J/;&fj 7. FOUNDATION | [JCentral A Cond. heating equipment capacity.
2. AREX INVOLVED 4. CONST. TYPE [JConcrete [IOther: 13. HEAT LOSS
Unfin. [OSite-Built CMasoary
Bsmt SqFt | [OMfd: (QWIUDC [JTreated Wood 10. SEWER BTU/HR Total Calculated
Living [JU.S. HUD [OOther: [OMunicipal Envelope and Infiltration Losses ("Maximum Allowable
Arca SqFt | 5. STORIES 8. USE [OSanitary Permit No.: Heating Equipment Output” on Energy Worksheet;
[11-Story [JSeasonal "Total Building Heating Load" on WIScheck report)
Garage | SqFt | [J2-Story [Permanent 11. WATER 14. EST. BUILDING COST
OOther: OOther: [OMunicipal Utility
Deck SqFt | [JPlus Basement [JPrivate On-Site Well $ (QQI Vo, 74

{ have read the cautionary statement regarding contract

APPLICANT’S SIGNATURE

authorized agent, permission to enter the premises for'which this permit

'8

upht at

1 agree to comply with all applicable codes, statutes, and ordinances and with the conditions of this permit; understand that the issuance of the permit creates no legal liability,
express or impiied, on the stat¢ or municipality; and certify that all the above information is accurate. If T am an owner applying for an crosion control or constructjon permit,
financial respongibility on the reverse side of the last ply. 1 expressly grant the building inspector, or the inspector's
onable hours and for any proper purpose to inspect the work which is being done.

DATE SIGNED & -/S-2235>-

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

permit or other

. [

| LY rd I
This permit s issued pursuant tI‘ Lhz following céngiftions. Failure to comply may result in suspension or revocation of this

ched for conditions of approval.

Fa
“."5“)' % he 7 A/ 74 ﬁﬂ/«?(“/_ﬁ

Municipality Number of Dwelling Location

17 I 1
FEES: PERMIT(S) ISSUED PERMIT ISSUED BY:
Plan Review s o [OConstruction
Inspection $ [JHVAC Name George Entzminger
Wis. Permit Seal § - [CElectrical -
Other $ CIPlumbing Date S$—/5-22-Tel. _ 115-962-4402
JErosion Control ~
Total $ 22,00 CertNo. __ R

Distribution: [ JCopy 1 - Issuing Jurisdiction [Topy 2 —Owner/Agent [ opy 3 - Inspector




22-106

©MarkThomas
Printed in USA.

‘VVe have lost someone
very special . . .
ThanK you for

sharing our grief.

The family of

WW
D hark

Mz/



